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Owned by the  
people of WA



Our Values

Our Vision

We deliver on the changing energy needs of Western Australians,  
powered by community trust and the passion of our people.

Safety 
First

We respect and take care of each other, our community and the 
environment. We choose safety – if it’s not safe we don’t do it. 

Customer 
Focus

We accept responsibility, do what we say and think about how 
our work affects others. Our solutions are relevant and make 
financial sense for our community. 

We embrace change and have a go. We challenge the status 
quo to deliver better outcomes. We learn and adapt quickly – 
we’re nimble.

We invite the diverse opinion of others and work together. We 
share ideas that advance our knowledge to develop energy 
solutions for our community.

Be Bold

Teamwork
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Corporate social responsibility at Western Power is centred 

on the guiding principle that we care about the social, 

environmental and economic issues that impact our people, 

our customers and our community. 

Western Power is committed to pursuing sustainability outcomes 

across the whole business. To achieve this, we’ve set out clear 

goals for the future:

• establishing a world class health, safety and environmental 

management system that benefits our employees, customers 

and the broader community 

• embracing a diverse and inclusive culture across our business 

so people feel supported to be themselves at work 

• building a flexible modular grid that supports the changing 

needs of our customers and embraces the use of new 

technologies and innovation

• providing our customers with greater choice including clean 

energy and affordable solutions

• ensuring our business operations and our suppliers positively 

contribute to the communities and value chains in which 

they operate

• fostering stronger partnerships with community organisations.
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Western Power is a corporation 
owned by the State Government 
of Western Australia, responsible 
for delivering a critical service to 
the community. We build, maintain 
and operate the electricity network 
within the State’s south west. Our 
vision is to deliver on the changing 
energy needs of Western Australians, 
powered by community trust and  
the passion of our people.

For more than 70 years, we’ve kept Western 
Australian communities connected to a range 
of traditional and renewable energy resources. 
Today, we’re responsible for powering the modern 
lives of more than two million customers with 
safe, reliable and affordable electricity. 

The energy industry is rapidly evolving, with 
new technologies presenting challenges and 
opportunities that drive our future-focussed 
planning, investment and innovation. We’re 
changing the way we operate the network, 
challenging conventional thinking to deliver  
a more flexible, modular grid that will better  
meet our customers’ needs. 

Our vast transmission and distribution network 
connects Western Australians to a wide range  
of both traditional and renewable energy  
sources across the South West Interconnected  
System (SWIS), which covers an area larger than  
the United Kingdom. 

We’re one of the largest island grids in the  
world due to WA’s geography – our powerlines 
span from Kalbarri in the north to Albany in the 
south, and out to Kalgoorlie in the east. 

We have 30 depots across the State including 
nine in the Perth metropolitan area, and more 
than 2,950 employees – smart, driven, talented 
people whose work seamlessly connects 
homes, businesses and essential community 
infrastructure to an increasingly renewable 
energy mix. Their work supercharges our  
vibrant West Australian lifestyle. 

Western Power is governed by an independent 
Board of non-executive directors. The Minister for 
Energy represents our State Government owner. 
Our performance is overseen by the Economic 
Regulation Authority, ensuring a fair, competitive 
and efficient environment for consumers 
and businesses. We’re regulated through an 
Access Arrangement made under the Electricity 
Networks Access Code 2004 (WA), which sets 
service performance targets and how much we 
can charge to allow access to the network. Our 
safety performance is regulated by the Building 
and Energy Division of the Department of Mines, 
Industry Regulation and Safety. 

In a rapidly changing landscape, our customers’ 
energy needs are advancing, and we intend to 
stay at the forefront of the energy revolution. 
We’re proud of our history and our people, and 
even prouder to be driving the development  
of Western Australia’s energy future.

About Western Power

2,950 
workforce

2+ million 
customers

103,000 km 
of wires

276,000 
streetlights

154 
substations
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The 2020-21 financial year has 
been challenging for our business 
with COVID-19, extreme weather 
and bushfires. Our employees and 
contractors have responded well in 
these exceptional conditions and 
overall our customers have continued 
to receive the high standard of 
service they expect – safe, reliable 
and affordable. 

Tropical Cyclone Seroja caused unprecedented 
damage resulting in the loss of power to about 
31,500 homes and businesses. Most were 
restored within a few days, but full restoration  
of the grid took much longer.

These major events disrupted our planned 
asset replacement capital works, in particular 
we replaced less distribution wood poles than 
planned with 11,700 completed rather than 
12,900. We fell short in our capital work funding 
with $738 million spent rather than the planned 
$891 million.

We achieved significant milestones during the 
year delivering beneficial outcomes for the 
community. All construction and substation work 
was completed for the Hay to Milligan substations’ 
critical infrastructure upgrade securing a lasting 
reliable supply for CBD businesses, residents  
and visitors.

We progressed our depot modernisation 
program, with the opening of the new Pinjarra 
Depot and work beginning on the new Albany, 
Geraldton and Forrestdale depots improving our 
services to the community and our employees.

Our innovative work in network solutions 
continued with the roll out of stand-alone power 
systems, community batteries and advanced 
metering infrastructure.

Commitment to safety is a pre-condition to 
being a successful organisation and our safety 
performance this year was good despite not 
meeting our industry-leading target. I am 
satisfied Western Power has the right safety 
culture, including visible leadership by our CEO 
and his leadership team, and we’ll see ongoing 
improvements in our business.

We’re fortunate to have a dedicated workforce 
whose performance has been overall exemplary. 
Our Code of Conduct sets out a clear set of 
standards for how we should conduct our 
business and provides the ethical and behavioural 
framework for our employees to make decisions. 
Importantly, it provides clear boundaries that we 
must hold ourselves and each other accountable 
for, to help make the right choices. As Chair, I am 
proud to be part of an organisation that does the 
right thing where employees act with honesty, 
integrity and fairness. 

I’m pleased to report that Western Power has 
resolved unintentional underpayments and our 
remediation has been accepted by the Fair Work 
Ombudsman. The only remaining obligations 
under the Enforceable Undertaking will be 
the completion of two independent audits of 
payments to employees on Individual Flexibility 
Agreements (IFAs) over the 2020-21 and 2021-22 
financial years.

A new enterprise agreement (EA) was signed 
between the business and the Australian Services 
Union (ASU) late in the year providing improved 
conditions for employees covered by that EA. 
Liaison continues with the Communications, 
Electrical, Plumbing Union (CEPU) for a 
replacement EA and though the CEPU took 
industrial action in the first half of 2021,  

Chair’s Message
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“Overall our customers  
have continued to receive  

the high standard of service  
they expect - safe,  

reliable and affordable”

Western Power remains steadfast in achieving 
a new EA that achieves a fair and reasonable 
outcome for employees covered by this 
agreement while meeting its responsibilities to the 
community.

Western Power applied for special leave to 
appeal the WA Supreme Court judgment 
regarding liability for the Parkerville fire to clarify 
our responsibility for inspecting and maintaining 
private assets.

We recorded an Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, 
Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) of $1,194 
million while our budget was $1,240 million.

COVID-19 has put global supply chains under 
duress. The shortage of semi-conductors, 
for example, is slowing down procurement 
of advanced meters. Additionally, the lack of 
availability of specialist overseas vendors to 
commission new equipment has impacted 
projects.

In line with last year, more than 99 per cent of 
our goods, services and materials were procured 
from Australian businesses, of which 76 per cent 
are operating in WA. Developing a diverse supplier 
base is a priority and we continue to meet all 
targets set under the State’s Aboriginal 

Procurement Policy Standard with 11 contracts 
now awarded to Aboriginal businesses. 

We’re directing more capital to new technologies. 
Stand-alone power systems (SPS) in remote 
areas increase reliability for customers and once 
we remove overhead conductors will reduce 
bushfire risk. With more frequent extreme 
weather associated with climate change, there is 
increasing urgency to progress SPS deployment. 

The increase in intermittent green energy 
generated by solar PV – residential rooftop and 
solar farms – and wind power creates challenges 
for the grid which we’re working to solve in 
conjunction with government and the Australian 
Energy Market Operator (AEMO). The advanced 
meters we’re installing will assist us in responding 
to these intermittencies to keep the grid stable. 

In addition to investment in physical assets as 
part of our response to the transformation of the 
energy sector we’re also investing significantly in 
data management, such as using the data we 
receive from advanced meters. Poles and wires 
will remain core to Western Power but we’re 
rapidly growing our ‘tech’ capability offering both 
traditional and innovative career opportunities. 

On behalf of the board, I thank our CEO Ed 
Kalajzic, for his leadership during this challenging 
year. I also thank my fellow directors for their 
dedication and commitment to the governance  
of Western Power.

Colin Beckett 
Chair

The efforts of all our employees in repairing and restoring power following the Wooroloo bushfire was recognised by the local 
community.
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This past year has brought to the  
fore what the core of our business  
is: we’re an organisation that puts the 
community at the centre of everything 
we do underpinned by an extremely 
talented, dedicated and committed 
team of people who are the backbone 
in delivering on the energy needs of 
Western Australians.

We choose safety at all times, and our vision for 
our employees is that ‘everyone goes home safe 
and healthy every day’. As of the end of June,  
our organisation-wide attitudes to safe work 
resulted in a total recordable industry frequency 
rate of 3.8.

To take our established safety culture to 
an advanced level, we’ve implemented our 
Workforce Safety Maturity Strategy, which aims 
to deliver a complete culture of safety built 
around engaged and empowered team members 
and leaders who live the safety-first value in 
everything they do. We also introduced new 
Safety Leadership training modules to upskill our 
safety leaders’ in physical and psychosocial risk 
assessment. These are delivered in the context  
of the six key safety leadership behaviours. 

This year highlighted the strength and resilience 
of our people as they worked through the 
ongoing impacts of COVID-19 and extreme 
weather and fire events. 

The past year has thrown many challenges at us 
from the Wooroloo bushfire that left thousands of 
homes and businesses without power to Tropical 
Cyclone Seroja that significantly damaged an 
extensive part of our network infrastructure. 

Our commitment to the community is unwavering 
and this was clearly demonstrated this year. 
We managed to achieve the equivalent annual 
workload of a small depot in under a month in our 
recovery efforts following the Wooroloo bushfire. 

Just weeks later, our teams tackled one of the 
biggest recovery projects we’ve ever undertaken 
with comprehensive repair work in the Mid West 
and Wheatbelt following Tropical Cyclone Seroja.

Thanks to the exceptional efforts of our team 
and contractors, reconstruction of the damaged 
network areas was completed safely and as 
quickly as possible and included a number of 
upgrades including SPS and overhead conductor 
improvements to improve capacity and future 
resilience against environmental factors.

The cyclone damaged around 20 per cent of the 
network – equivalent in size to half of Victoria – 
with 1,200 hazards across the network affecting 
power supply to 31,500 homes and businesses. 
We restored power to around 95 per cent of the 
communities affected with an approach based on 
making sure the greatest number of community 
members were connected as safely and quickly 
as possible.

It’s indeed a humbling experience to work 
alongside members of our community following 
devastating events such as these and it 
demonstrates the strong community spirit  
WA has. 

The energy sector continues to develop at a rapid 
rate, and while its progression is exciting it is also 
challenging. Where once our network consisted 
of wires, poles and substations, we’re now 
integrating microgrids, community batteries and 
SPS. Without doubt, the changing generation mix 
has presented challenges in managing network 
voltage and network stability, but it has also 
presented amazing opportunities.

CEO Message 



Western Power Annual Report 2021     |    7

In Wooroloo, this approach enabled us to install 
two SPS, identify three redundant connections 
and three proactive abolishments to supply – 
eight connections we treated differently to a 
traditional rebuild. This shows scope for dramatic 
change across the entire network if a similar 
approach is taken. 

In the cyclone recovery area this enabled us 
to identify 37 new sites with an additional four 
brought forward from 2021-22 rollout. These 
alternatives to traditional rebuilds are an excellent 
example of how we’re transforming the grid 
using innovative technology and incorporating 
renewable energy to meet our customers’ 
changing energy needs.

More broadly, the uptake of renewable energy 
technology has grown significantly across the 
State, with one in three houses in the South West 
using solar PV technology and this is only set 
to rise. Likewise, more commercial generators 
have connected to the grid with Yandin and 
Warradarge wind farms coming online.

The south-west grid is essential as it powers the 
lives of 2.3 million people, so we need to enhance 
its capability and performance to ensure we 
continue to deliver a cleaner, brighter and more 
resilient energy supply for the next generation.

We’re looking to invest extra distribution storage  
for the SWIS in the coming years.

Our 13 community batteries continue to play an 
important part in helping to meet the ongoing 
energy needs of Western Australians. 

These batteries benefit the community, whether 
they have solar panels or not, as the batteries 
are placed in areas where the network would 
otherwise need upgrading to maintain power 
reliability and quality. 

Additionally, we have rolled out a further 52 SPS 
units across the SWIS in Round 1, with a further 
88 planned for Round 2 with the help of an 
emerging group of WA suppliers – a new industry 
and jobs for WA. Our modelling shows that 
installing thousands of SPS over the next decade 
could avoid millions of dollars in replacement and 
maintenance activities while facilitating access to 
greener, sustainable energy for our customers.

The Kalbarri microgrid project reached a 
significant milestone this year with the installation 
of its centrepiece, the largest utility-scale battery 
ever to be connected to the Western Power 
electricity network. Kalbarri is the most remote 
part of our northern network and the proximity 
of the new power supply to town will improve 
the reliability during most unplanned outages on 
the feeder from Geraldton. It will allow for future 
renewable generation sources to be integrated  
as they become available. We look forward to  
the battery and microgrid being operational later 
this year. 

We’ve added an extra layer of safety by 
harnessing the benefits of advanced meters.  
We can now remotely detect faults on the service 
connection to a customer’s home if they have  
an advanced meter, and send a crew to 
investigate. We’re on track to have nearly  
half a million advanced meters operational  
in customers’ homes by June 2022.

As we transform the way we operate, increase 
our reliance on technology and expand our digital 
ecosystem, the threat of a cyber-attack on our 
critical energy infrastructure continues to increase. 
In response, we’re continuing to invest in our 
cyber security defences and capabilities across 
the business.

“The past year has been  
full of achievements and 
challenges, but we have  
risen and met these head  

on with great success” 
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Our innovation was recognised this year when 
we were awarded the national Digital Utility of 
the Year Energy Award for our Digital Substation 
pilot project and the global organisation Peak 
Load Management Alliance 2021 Award for 
our Flexibility Services Pilot. These awards 
highlight the significant strides we’re making in 
transforming WA’s SWIS to meet and plan for  
the community’s energy needs. 

Highlights from our depot modernisation program 
this year included the announcement in January 
of a new $16 million energy hub in Albany – a 
state-of-the-art facility due for completion in 
2022, which will improve local operational 
efficiency for Albany and surrounds. The facility’s 
design focuses on optimum operational safety 
as it meets the growing energy needs of our 
customers in the Great Southern region, built  
by local firms. 

Construction continued on our new Forrestdale 
(South Metro) depot, which will bring together 
Prinsep Road, Kewdale and Mount Claremont 
depots; and with Pinjarra depot up and running, 
the Mandurah and Waroona depots have 
been consolidated. In the north of the State, 
construction of a new fit-for-purpose depot  
is underway adjacent to our existing  
Geraldton depot.

In June this year, a new Western Power and 
Australian Services Union (ASU) Enterprise 
Agreement (EA) was signed providing improved 
conditions for our employees covered by that 
agreement. While there have been challenges in 
negotiating a new EA with the Communications, 
Electrical, Plumbing Union including protected 
action ballot orders (PABO) granted by the Fair 
Work Commission which resulted in industrial 
action, we’re committed to working with the 
union to achieve an agreement that is fair and 
reasonable for employees while meeting our 
responsibilities to our owners, the community.

Another challenge during the year was the 
Supreme Court’s judgment regarding liability for 
the Parkerville fire. We’re working through  
the implications of this decision and have applied  
for special leave to appeal this judgement.  

We appreciate how difficult this has been for the 
Parkerville community and the Court of Appeal’s 
decision will not impede a payment to claimants.

Preparation is underway for our Access 
Arrangement proposal for the fifth access period 
(1 July 2022 to 30 June 2027), which will be 
submitted to the Economic Regulation Authority 
in February 2022. This access arrangement 
review requires us to navigate new and revised 
regulations, while ensuring network safety and 
reliability are maintained and transitioning the 
network to meet changing customer behaviour 
and expectations. Our proposal will detail our 
plan to address ageing assets and provide for 
ongoing financial sustainability of the business  
so that we can continue to deliver benefits to  
the community.

We’re proud to continue playing an important 
role in providing Western Australians with 
vocational education opportunities, and in the 
past 12 months we’ve celebrated the graduation 
of more than 20 apprentices and trainees from 
our entry-level programs. There are currently 
88 people enrolled in these programs – 
traineeships, apprenticeships and an Engineering 
Graduate program which provide participants 
with nationally recognised qualifications plus 
invaluable and important on-the-job training  
and experience.

Indeed, the past year has been full of achievements 
and challenges, but we have risen and met  
these head on with great success. I would like  
to take this opportunity to thank every one of 
our employees for their unwavering dedication, 
commitment and exceptional standards of delivery.

Ed Kalajzic 
CEO



Western Power Annual Report 2021     |    9



10     |     Western Power Annual Report 2021

Corporate Strategy

In 2021, the Western Power Board 
approved a new 10 year corporate 
strategy centred on ‘powering the 
lives of our community’. The strategy 
recognises that the community wants 
safe and more reliable, increasingly 
renewable electricity and a grid that 
keeps costs low and supports jobs 
and growth. In response, our strategy 
sets out our plan to meet these needs 
by transitioning to a modular grid and 
supporting the decarbonisation of  
our local economy.
WA is preparing for a climate-resilient and 
prosperous decarbonised future based on a  
shift to net-zero emissions by 2050. The grid has 
a critical enabling role in reducing emissions in 
our economy. We’ll actively invest to ensure  

the grid has the technologies needed to  
increase the share of renewable generation 
powering our community over the next decade. 
The decarbonisation of our grid will also enable 
other industries to achieve their emission 
reduction goals through further electrification.

We need to transform our network into a 
modular grid to manage climate risks and end 
of life assets while providing safe, reliable and 
affordable electricity services to our community, 
regardless of where they live. Our traditional 
assets will continue to remain a significant part  
of our business. 

The transformation will take more than a decade 
of investment and by acting now we can minimise 
the transition costs and ensure the benefits of  
a decarbonised future for our community are  
not missed while continuing to support jobs  
and growth. We look forward to sharing more 
detail on our corporate strategy throughout  
the next year.

Western Power Corporate Strategy | 2021-2031

Our community expects us to safely:

Our plan to deliver for the community focuses on:

Built upon our values:

Connect more  
renewables

Driven by  
our people

Enabled by  
technology

Safety First Customer Focus Be Bold Teamwork

Optimising the  
modular grid  
transition

Integrating  
distribution energy 
resources into  
the grid

Delivering  
outcomes for  
customers

Driving financial  
sustainability

Decarbonising  
our community

Support jobs 
and growthKeep costs lowProvide reliable 

supply
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Our story | Wooroloo fire
In February, a fastmoving bushfire began at 
a private property in Wooroloo in the Shire of 
Mundaring, 45 kilometres north-east of Perth. 
The fire subsequently spread to the shires of 
Chittering and Northam and to the City of Swan, 
travelling more than 25 kilometres and burning 
over 11,000 hectares. 

In total, 86 homes were destroyed and power 
to thousands of Western Power customers 
impacted as the fire damaged 579 Western 
Power poles, 47 transformers and 56 
underground assets. 

As soon as it was safe to do so, our crews – 
including more than 270 team members and 
200 light, heavy and support vehicles – began 
rebuilding efforts. This was an enormous task 
that saw the equivalent of a year’s worth of a 
small depot’s work completed in four weeks. 

In addition to replacing damaged infrastructure, 
we took the opportunity to complete a number of 
upgrades to improve future power reliability and 
quality for local residents by enhancing and using 
new technology. These included the installation 
of two SPS units, installation of three-phase line 
in some areas to allow for quicker restoration 
following future unplanned outages, upgrading 
overhead conductors to improve system capacity, 
and installing some low voltage aerial bundled 
conductors in high vegetation areas. 

We made sure that our community engagement 
team were on site to help answer customers’ 
questions regarding power supply to their 
properties in person. For residents whose 
properties were impacted by the fire, we 
waived fees related to network connections 
and reconnections. Where property or network 
connections were damaged but not destroyed, 
existing points were reconnected, and meters 
replaced free of charge. For residents whose 
property was destroyed by the fire, we waived 
the cost of establishing temporary builder  
power supply.

We’re proud of the way our employees worked 
together and in collaboration with other agencies 
and the local community to assess and rebuild 
damaged existing infrastructure, improve future 
power reliability and quality with new upgrades, 
and provide support and information safely  
and quickly.

Every summer we’re thankful for the thousands 
of emergency services personnel who go to 
extraordinary lengths to protect communities 
across WA. Without the brave efforts of so many 
volunteers working together with our crews, 
career firefighters and other emergency services, 
devastation from the Wooroloo fire would have 
been far worse.

Restoring power safely and quickly for the community was  
our priority.

Our temporary recovery depot at Gidgegannup helped  
fast-track repairs.
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Operating review

Significant investment and renewal 
was carried out on the network  
during the 2020-21 financial year. 
Major work included replacement  
of wood pole, conductor cross arms, 
transformer and streetlights, as well as 
primary and secondary transmission 
plant replacement, undergrounding 
and supervisory control and data 
acquisition (SCADA) systems. 

Our Service Connection Condition Monitoring 
(SCCM) program being operational enabled 
us to proactively and remotely identify service 
connection faults that could lead to an  
electric shock.

We continued to deliver on minor and major 
customer funded work. The State Government’s 
Building Bonus Grant for new home builds and 
the Federal Government’s HomeBuilder Grant 
for new builds and renovations resulted in a 
300 per cent increase in the number of project 
applications between June and September  
2020 compared to the same period in 2019. 
Average monthly applications during this period 
tripled from around 50 per month to more than 
150 per month. 

Western Power’s Capex Investment

Additionally, we continued to invest in our cyber 
security capability and upgrade our information 
and communications technology infrastructure  
to meet the modern operating environment. 

Significant investment was made in the 
transformation of the SWIS to a more modular 
grid with the integration and use of new 
technologies such as battery storage, SPS, our 
depot modernisation program and the continued 
deployment of advanced metering infrastructure.

Some of our biggest operational challenges during 
the year were the introduction of timekeeping for 
our 2,900 plus workforce, the ongoing impacts 
of COVID-19, and the pressure of emergency 
operations resulting from extreme weather events 
such as Tropical Cyclone Seroja. Our approach 
in meeting these challenges demonstrated the 
business’s agility, resilience and innovation.

Achievements that aligned with our strategic 
goals included advanced metering infrastructure 
going ‘live’, energisation of the Warradarge Wind 
Farm, the commissioning of community batteries 
and the deployment of 28 SPS during FY 2020-
2021.

 Renewing the network (inc. safety)
 Information technology

 Connecting new customers
 Reliability and other targeted investments

 Meeting growth in demand
 New technologies

$44.4M

$61.0M

$48.1M

$54.0M
$102.6M

$430.4M

Depot 
Modernisation 

$15.8M

Advanced  
Meters  
$36.9M

SPS $8.3M
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2020/21
Actual

2020/21 
Target

S
a

fe
ty

Total Recordable Injury Frequency Rate (TRIF)1 3.8 ≤ 2.7

Public impact 0.0 ≤ 0.4

Reportable environmental incidents 0.4 ≤ 0.4

R
el

ia
b

le
 

Service standards met 18/19 All

Customer supply availability 99.90% ≥ 99.93%

Effi
ci

en
ct

Capital expenditure2 $740.3M $892.2M

Operating expenditure $474.9M $463.8M

Corporate EBITDA $1,193.6M $1,240.3M

Dividend to Government3 $299.8M $491.3M

G
ro

w
th

Average network tariff price increase 3.8% 3.8%

New business EBITDA $0.3M $1M

Number of apprenticeship and scholarship 
opportunities for West Australians4 88 50

Number of Stand-alone Power Systems deployed 28 28

Number of Community Batteries5 0 10

Notes:

1 Calculated as an actual 12 month rolling measure.

2 Excludes Gifted Assets.

3 FY 2020/21 interim dividend deferred to FY 2021-22 as approved by Cabinet.

4 Number of apprentices, trainees and graduates currently part of the Entry Level Program.

5 Subject to agreement with Government and Synergy.

Performance against Statement of Corporate Intent 

MeasureGovt Goal

Sustainable 
Finances

Future Jobs 
and Skills

Better 
Places
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Role in WA’s Energy Transformation Strategy

The Western Australian energy 
sector has faced significant change 
over the last decade, driven by the 
widespread uptake of customer 
owned rooftop PV systems, a shift 
towards renewable generation 
displacing fossil fuelled generation, 
and new technologies such as 
energy storage solutions, stand-alone 
power systems and microgrids. 

While a transition to renewables in the generation 
mix creates more opportunities for low cost and 
low emissions energy for WA, the sometimes-
irregular nature of these sources can pose 
challenges in the way we manage our assets 
and maintain the reliability and security of the 
network.

To better plan and manage this and deliver more 
affordable, reliable and sustainable energy for the 
community into the future the WA Government 
launched the Energy Transformation Strategy 
(ETS) in 2019 to ‘provide safe, secure, reliable, 
low-emission power to Western Australian 
households and businesses at the lowest 
sustainable cost, while allowing new technology 
to connect and giving people more control over 
their electricity use’.

We have worked closely with customers, industry 
and Government throughout the year to deliver 
on the Energy Transformation Strategy’s vision 
and continue our energy evolution. 

The State Government launched the first  
Whole of System Plan (WoSP) for the SWIS, 
which provided a detailed study of how WA’s 
major power system may evolve in the next 20 
years, to guide future investment and assist in  
the transition to a lowest-cost, lower emissions  
power system. 

The options in the WoSP consider the 
opportunities to introduce different and new 
technologies including energy storage, and 
efficiently integrate more renewable generation 
into our grid, rather than depend solely on the 
more traditional network augmentation. The 
study and options were based on modelling and 
analysis conducted by Energy Policy WA (EPWA) 
with key contributions from the AEMO and 
Western Power, and we’ll continue to support the 
development of future WoSPs. 

The WA Distributed Energy Resources (DER) 
Roadmap sets out measures to overcome 
technical, regulatory and market barriers to help 
us integrate new DER into the grid. This year 
we’ve been proud to work with EPWA, Horizon 
Power, Synergy and AEMO to implement the 
Roadmap with actions focused on updating 
technical requirements, understanding the 
current landscape through the DER Register, 
continuing to connect more solar PV and 
modernising connection standards to support 
new technology types. The Roadmap will help 
us support high levels of DER on the network, 
ensuring safe, secure, and affordable electricity 
supply now and in the future. 

Underpinning all this work is a regulatory 
framework which for Western Power includes  
the Electricity Networks Access Code 2004 (WA),  
the Technical Rules, and the Wholesale Electricity 
Market (WEM) Rules. 

The growth of renewables such as solar and wind are 
changing the way that energy is managed.  
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We’ve worked closely with EPWA, AEMO, ERA, 
customers and industry to review and modernise 
the regulatory framework to actively include new 
technology, improve network access, technical 
requirements and standards, and provide clarity 
of roles and responsibilities, and consistency 
across the different regulatory instruments ahead 
of the key ETS milestones, including the new 
WEM start in October 2022.

In January 2020 we commenced jointly with 
AEMO the drafting of proposed changes 
to the Technical Rules which will deliver a 
holistic update to support the changing energy 
landscape. This includes easier connection of 
inverter-based generators, coordination of DER 
sources, improved compliance and monitoring 
framework, and robust network planning criteria 
with clear roles and responsibilities for users, 
and rule participants, and improved operational 
coordination.

In June 2021 we held customer forums to 
raise awareness of the proposed changes to 
seek feedback to ensure user obligations were 
considered to be fair and reasonable, and fit for 
purpose for our customers. We submitted our 
proposed drafting to the ERA on 30 July 2021  
for review and feedback. Approval is expected  
by 1 March 2022. 

We have also worked with EPWA to develop 
amendments to the Electricity Networks Access 
Code 2004 (WA) which enables: the introduction 
of a constrained access regime in the SWIS  

through changes to our access policies; and  
the deployment of SPS as a new grid solution. 

EPWA’s current review of the WEM Rules will 
continue into the next year, however many of 
the regulatory challenges to implementing a 
new WEM, which focuses on operating and 
dispatching the market to provide the economic, 
safe, secure and reliable provision of power to 
customers on the SWIS, have now been resolved 
and the proposed Rule amendments have been 
gazetted. We have consulted closely with EPWA, 
AEMO and industry on the drafting of these 
changes and continue to plan implementation 
ahead of the new market starting.

Generator Performance Standards are a key 
enabler for the new WEM. We have worked 
closely with AEMO and our customers to 
establish the new criteria, which provide the 
technical requirements and ideal and minimum 
criteria for generator registration and compliance 
within the new WEM. This enables generators 
to be accredited and dispatched in the future 
Essential System Services market in October 
2022. We continue to work closely with AEMO 
and our customers to assess each customers’ 
generator compliance ahead of the February 
2022 deadline.

Solar panels are an important component in our SPS units.
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We’re proud to be at the forefront 
of innovation and technology, 
embracing new generation, 
distribution and management options 
to ensure the network meets the 
needs of Western Australians into 
the future. We’re well on the way to 
transforming the grid with significant 
progress made during the past year.

Community batteries

Allowing for excess solar energy to be stored  
and used when needed, community batteries 
play an important role in managing customer PV 
output. We currently have two types of batteries 
as part of the Western Power network: large 
network batteries that form part of a microgrid, 
such as the one in Perenjori in the State’s Mid 
West, and smaller scale community batteries.

We have 13 community batteries placed in 
areas where the network would otherwise need 
upgrading to maintain power reliability and 
quality. We continue to partner with Synergy  
on a series of PowerBank community battery 
trials – an Australian-first for the successful 
integration of community batteries into an 
established network. The first trials, PowerBank 1 
and PowerBank 2, launched in Meadow Springs 
and Falcon near Mandurah, and Ellenbrook in 
Perth’s northern suburbs, in the past three years.

In March, we worked with Synergy to start 
PowerBank 3, the third and largest trial to date, 
providing up to 600 additional households with 
the opportunity to leverage battery storage 
technology and potentially lower their power 
bills. The 18-month trial allows household 
participants to take advantage of their rooftop 
solar PV systems by storing up to 6kWh or 
8kWh of excess solar energy for later use. For 
the first time in the series of trials, customers 
are able to accrue excess energy over the 
course of their billing cycle, providing greater 
opportunity to offset peak energy consumption. 
PowerBanks are installed in Meadow Springs, 
Falcon, Canning Vale, Port Kennedy, Busselton, 
Two Rocks, Ashby, Yokine, Kalgoorlie, Margaret 
River and Parmelia-Kwinana. In Ellenbrook, two 
PowerBanks are now installed.

Stand-alone power systems (SPS)

Providing reliable power supply in regional and 
remote areas of WA is challenging, with distance, 
complex terrain, diverse landscapes and extreme 
weather events and bushfires impacting network 
infrastructure.

SPS deliver significant benefits to our customers 
in these areas, providing reliable access to power 
almost regardless of location or conditions. 

Each SPS functions as an energy supply unit 
comprised of a renewable energy source  
(solar PVs), a battery and back-up generation  

Future-proofing the network

Thirteen community batteries are now connected to the 
network.

Stand-alone power systems are fast becoming an 
important tool in improving power reliability and quality  
for customers at the end of spur lines.
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(if required), operating entirely independently  
of the main electricity network while still forming 
part of our service area.

We’re currently on track to roll out a further 
88 units in 2021-22, replacing about 330 
kilometres of overhead powerlines and delivering 
significant cost savings. We continue to work 
with our customers to determine their energy 
needs, which can result in an SPS or a supply 
abolishment. As as result, SPS deployment 
numbers continually change depending on 
customer needs and choice.

In the medium term, the State Government has 
committed to deploying 1,000 SPS in the next 
four years across WA and we’re looking to deploy 
4,000 units across the network in the coming 
decade. Modelling has shown that if we roll out 
6,000 SPS, we’ll be able to decomission more 
than 23,000 kilometres of overhead assets, or 
about 17 per cent of the current network. 

Large scale SPS use in WA has required 
regulatory changes, and our work with policy 
agencies and the State Government culminated 
in the Western Australian Parliament passing the 
Electricity Industry Amendment Bill 2019 (WA) 
in April 2020 enabling us to own, operate and 
provide SPS.

Kalbarri microgrid

The popular tourist town of Kalbarri receives 
power via a 140 kilometre rural feeder line from 
Geraldton, which is exposed to the elements and 
subject to interference that can cause extended 
outages. In peak tourism periods when demand 
on supply is at its highest, the risk of outages 
increases, impacting local residents and visitors. 

To solve this long-standing issue, a new  
$15 million microgrid has been installed at Kalbarri. 

The microgrid, which will connect to the main 
electricity network, uses renewable energy from 
residential and commercial solar and a wind 
farm to supply 5MW of peak capacity power in 
the event that network power is interrupted. It 
provides at least 2MW hours of energy storage.

Testing of the microgrid and a 40-day trial will 
be undertaken in late September 2021, and the 
Kalbarri community is expected to see improved 
power reliability later this year.

Advanced Metering Infrastructure

Western Power’s installation of advanced 
metering infrastructure across the SWIS 
continues as planned, with the connection  
of 490,000 advanced meters to our network by 
2022 on track for delivery. 

The implementation of advanced metering 
delivers immediate benefits to customers, 
including: the ability for faults to be remotely 
detected to improve reliability and safety; remote 
meter reading, leading to fewer estimated bills; 
usage recordings in 30-minute intervals, allowing 
for more detailed energy usage information; 
remote re-energisation, leading to faster 
reconnections; and the easy integration  
of new technologies including community 
batteries, microgrids, embedded networks  
and electric vehicles.

Kalbarri microgrid will improve Kalbarri’s power supply 
when connected later in the year.

Advanced metering infrastructure is delivering immediate 
benefits to customers.
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Smart Streetlights

In November 2020, we completed our 12-month 
smart streetlights trial, which involved the 
installation of 100 smart streetlights in the City 
of Melville. The trial was a resounding success, 
providing a range of community, operational 
and cost efficiency benefits to the local 
community. The technology now means we 
can dim and brighten streetlights remotely and 
can automatically detect and report faults for 
quicker repairs. LED streetlights also have a far 
longer lifespan than conventional streetlights and 
are more energy efficient, delivering significant 
environmental benefits.

Perenjori microgrid

September 2020 marked two years of consistent 
and assured community power supply for 
the Perenjori community thanks to the utility-
scale Battery Energy Storage System (BESS) 
established in the town. Perenjori’s power supply 
traditionally was only fed via a long feeder line to 
the town, with local environmental factors causing 
frequent disruptions to supply. 

In a world-first trial in 2018 the 1MW/hr BESS 
was installed directly into the local distribution 
network, creating a local microgrid.

Since its installation, the network battery has 
been used successfully to support power 
reliability avoiding more than 29 hours of outages 
for the town. 

The Perenjori microgrid will remain in the town 
as a permanent network fixture. We’ll continue 
to draw on the data and knowledge gained to 
explore opportunities that utility-scale battery 
integration and microgrid solutions offer for  
other regional communities.

Flexibility Services Pilot

As part of our drive to create a more sustainable, 
reliable and innovative network for the future, we 
partnered with WA businesses during the year to 
build flexibility services into the commercial and 
industrial customer solutions we offer.

With technology support from Schneider Electric, 
we designed a pilot to learn how commercial and 
industrial entities with large DER such as solar PV 
and batteries, and manageable loads like heating 
and cooling systems, could be enabled to better 
manage their generated load or supply for a 
financial incentive.

The focus is to demonstrate ways to effectively 
engage, procure and utilise customer assets to 
support the management of network challenges 
caused by excess rooftop PV generation and not 
enough demand to soak up supply. 

Smart streetlights are proving to be beneficial to local 
government authorities and residents.

The BESS continues to support the Perenjori community.

We’re working with our commercial customers to help 
manage their distributed energy resources such as solar PVs.
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Stage one ran between September 2020 to  
April 2021 with 10 participating partners asked to 
modify their energy use and generation between 
10am-2pm on specific weekends. 

Working with our partners we successfully 
enabled energy flexibility to help stabilise the grid 
during critical hours on weekends and holidays. 

Over the course of the pilot an average 20MW 
of energy flexibility was achieved, a significant 
amount given it was the first time that partners 
had participated in such a program, with no 
benchmarks. 

The results of stage one also informed the type 
of technologies that may support the efficient 
delivery of flexibility services for both the partners 
and the network. Stage 2 of the pilot will 
commence in Spring 2021.

Project Symphony

In early 2021, we were pleased to announce  
with project partners Synergy and the AEMO  
the exciting and innovative $35 million  
Project Symphony. 

The project aims to orchestrate customer 
distributed energy resources (DER) including 
rooftop solar, batteries and major appliances  
as a Virtual Power Plant (VPP) enabling 
customers to participate in a future energy market 
unlocking greater economic and environmental 
benefits for the Western Australian community

As part of the WA Government’s Distributed 
Energy Resources Roadmap, the project will help 
provide insight and understanding on how the 
opportunities and challenges of increasing DER 
can be managed to ensure a reliable, secure 
and affordable electricity system. It will deliver 
learnings on how the full capabilities of DER  
can provide greater choice, affordability and 
flexibility of energy services and products for  
WA households and businesses.

52 SPS  
installed in  
Round One

~40% of  
WA’s daytime  
energy from  
renewables

35% of WA 
households  
have solar

490,000 
advanced  

meters installed 
by 2022

“Smart Streetlights:  
The technology now means  

we can dim and brighten  
streetlights remotely and  
can automatically detect  

and report faults for  
quicker repairs” 

We’re beginning a Virtual Power Plant trial to test how 
customer DER such as solar PVs can be orchestrated for 
community benefit.
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Our story | Tropical Cyclone 
Seroja recovery and rebuild
On Sunday 11 April, Tropical Cyclone Seroja hit 
the WA coast between Kalbarri and Geraldton. 
The category three cyclone deposited 167mm of 
rain in Kalbarri and brought wind gusts of up to 
170km/hr, the strongest wind gusts experienced 
in Geraldton since 1956. It left a scar of destruction 
stretching far inland – half the size of Victoria.

The destruction included significant damage 
to network infrastructure including thousands 
of major transmission and distribution lines, 
transformers, poles, crossarms and kilometres  
of wire – the most damage from a single event  
in Western Power’s history.

The challenges weren’t confined to the massive 
recovery and rebuild over a vast geographical 
area. Crews deployed in the initial days were 
themselves without power and accommodation 
was hard to source limiting the numbers of crews 
that could be deployed. There were challenges 
transporting materials and asbestos debris 
stopped crews being able to access certain 
areas, while farmers were desperate to get poles 
cleared from land to commence seeding. 

Our teams rose to the challenge of repairing  
the network using our tech smarts and  
innovative thinking. 

We identified 37 new sites and brought forward 
an additonal four SPS sites from Round Two and 
provided generators and fuel to customers until 
the units are installed; we used Light Detection 
and Ranging (LiDAR) to take real time 3D images 
of assets to quickly identify damaged poles and 
wires; undertook helicopter patrols to conduct 
initial surveys of damage and identified and 
brought forward maintenance work that could be 
carried out alongside repair work bypassing the 
need for any planned outages on the affected 
lines until June 2022. Additionally an extra 20 
poles and 20 insulators were replaced.

Restoring the network and the 31,500 customers 
affected was managed in three broad tranches  
of work: 

Wheatbelt area covering 42 towns 
including Dalwalinu, Merredin, Mukinbudin, 
Bencubbin, Goomalling and Kalannie. Six 
main distribution lines were affected, and most 
customers were restored by 23 April 2021. 

Mid West covering Kalbarri, Northampton, 
Geraldton, Dongara and Mullewa which bore 
the brunt of the damage. One month after the 
cyclone, 97 per cent of affected customers had 
power, but it took another month to restore the 
remaining customers due to the remote locations 
and single spur lines. 

Transmission network: six key transmission 
lines supplying the Mid West – including 10,000 
people in Geraldton – were attended by specialist 
transmission teams and restored by 25 May 2021. 

During a recovery as extensive as Seroja it had 
never been more important to come together as 
a community and provide support to our affected 
customers. 

We worked quickly and closely with Department 
of Education and the Department of Finance 
to source and install generators (with fantastic 
assistance from local electricians) at several 
schools to ensure students could get back to 

Twenty per cent of the network was damaged resulting  
in extensive repairs in the Mid West and Wheatbelt region.
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some sense of normality as soon as possible. 
We provided a generator to the Northampton 
local sports centre and footy oval, which meant 
residents had a community hub while the town 
was still without power.

Our Community Engagement team attended 
more than 40 community meetings and provided 
daily updates to residents, business owners,  
local Shires and other agencies.

“Something that stood out to me from the entire experience was the teamwork from all areas of the 
business. Everyone went above and beyond, and what really amazed me was the commitment shown 
by our people – even those who had no power themselves.” 
Jeff Spinner – Regional South Manager, Operational Maintenance

“Thank you for the incredible effort that is being 
undertaken to restore power to as many as is 
humanly possible. The damage is extreme,  
and your team is doing an amazing job.”
Karen Chappel – President, Shire of Morawa

“Well done Western Power, a great effort  
during challenging times.”
Jason Waters – Synergy CEO

“You can all be extremely proud of the 
achievement you have made in restoring power 
wherever you have in less than three weeks.  
The devastation across the entire affected area 
was massive. Congratulations to every member 
of the teams working on the restoration work. 
Please stay safe at all times.”
Mark Andrew – Resident

Our community engagement officers were on the ground to provide information and support to residents affected.

The destruction following Tropical Cycle Seroja. We worked with farmers to ensure minimal impact on 
seeding and cropping.
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Sustainability

Our community is preparing for a 
climate-resilient and decarbonised 
future. The WA Government 
has an aspiration of net zero 
emissions by 2050 and we all have 
an obligation to work together 
towards this as we respond to the 
challenges and opportunities created 
by a changing climate.

Western Power’s grid has a critical enabling  
role in reducing emissions in our economy.  
We believe the pathway to decarbonise our 
electricity system and reduce generation 
emissions is clear, with wind and solar already  
the lowest cost new generation sources. 

Our grid is already enabling the transition from 
carbon-intensive generation to renewable 
generation and we’re working on doing more. 
Our role in our shared decarbonised future is 
to help maximise the returns on renewable and 
distributed energy resource investments made 
by generators, aggregators, industry, small 
businesses, retailers and households. 

We aspire to lift the share of the community’s 
electricity needs being met from renewables 
from its current 25 percent to more than 50 per 
cent by 2031. We recognise that a decarbonising 
electricity system is a core enabler for other 
industries to being able to leverage electrification 
to achieve their decarbonisation aspirations. 

Just as we support the decarbonisation of the 
electricity system, we must build a climate-
resilient grid and we’re working to transform 
our network to a modular grid to manage 
climate change risks and end of life assets while 
providing safe, reliable and affordable electricity 
services to our community.

Implementing the recommendations  
of the Task Force on Climate-related 
Financial Disclosures 
Acknowledging the significance of climate 
change to our business, in 2021 we are starting  
to disclose climate-related risks in line with  
the recommendations of the Task Force on  
Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)  
and we’ll seek to increase our alignment over  
the coming years.

Governance 
Our Board regularly reviews corporate risks 
and adjusts corporate risk appetite statements 
to guide the business. These actions inform 
decisions about asset life-cycles, potential impacts 
from environmental factors and identify areas 
for improvements. Our Board engages with the 
Minister for Energy for Western Power’s overall 
business and strategic performance. 

Strategy 
This year Western Power conducted a climate 
risk and opportunity assessment identifying key 
risks and opportunities.

Risk management
Western Power has a framework to manage its 
strategic, operational, regulatory and reporting 
risks. The corporate risk management framework 
and accompanying standards: 

• sets out a methodology and process for the  
 identification, analysis and evaluation of risks. 

• provides a structure for ongoing review and  
 monitoring in ensuring emerging risks, such  
 as those arising from changes in market   
 design, organisational restructures,   
 operational issues and climate change are  
 identified and addressed. 

• outlines the accountabilities of management  
 and contains procedures which facilitate the  
 transparent and timely reporting of risk   
 matters throughout Western Power.

• provides metrics and targets for the   
 monitoring and management of risks.
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Emissions performance
Since 2008-09 we’ve reported our emissions 
under the National Greenhouse and Energy 
Reporting Scheme, which requires disclosure 
of Scope 1 and Scope 2 greenhouse gas 
emissions, energy production and energy 
consumption. Scope 1 emissions are those 
emissions directly produced by Western Power 
while Scope 2 emissions are indirect emissions 
such as from power that is consumed by  
the business. 

Since reporting commenced, we’ve decreased 
our greenhouse gas emissions from 
approximately 983kt CO2-e to approximately 
732kt CO2-e – an approximate 25 per cent 
reduction. This has been driven by a decrease 
in carbon intensity of network connected 
generators (from 0.87 kg CO2-e/kWh to 0.69 kg 
CO2-e/kWh as prepared by the Clean Energy 
Regulator) and a reduction in energy losses  
from our network.

Targets
Western Power shares the Government’s  
long-term aim of reaching net zero emissions by 
2050, in line with the WA Climate Policy. During  
2021-22 we’ll be working with the Department  
of Water and Environmental Regulation to build  
out our net-zero transition plan.

Operational responses 
We know that changing weather patterns  
impact the grid and our activities. Prior to 
every bushfire season we carry out extensive 
preparatory works, such as clearing trees 
and bushes, replacing poles and maintaining 
overhead lines and insulators. We also alter the 
operation of the network in bushfire prone areas 
to minimise the risk of fire being caused by  
a spark. 

With increasing temperatures it’s important  
we continue our work as safely as possible.  
Our crews work closely with the Department 
of Fire and Emergency Services and local 
government authorities during extreme fire  
risk days or during vehicle movement bans to 
ensure work is carried out as safely as possible 
and to minimise potential risks from planned 
works. High risk activities such as switching are 
delayed until weather conditions change to allow 
work to take place. Work involving the use of an 
ignition source is also avoided or undertaken 
on the back of trucks with appropriate safety 
equipment.

Yandin Wind Farm.
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Risks Opportunities

Increasing frequency and severity of  
weather events and/or bushfires damaging 
assets and interrupting supply 

Modular grid transition to improve the grid’s 
climate resilience

Uncoordinated uptake of distributed  
renewable energy resources putting power 
system security and network reliability at risk 

Enhancement of our distribution system 
operator capability to orchestrate the 
electricity system in concert with others 

Changing stakeholder expectations  
on climate actions 

Increasingly decarbonised grid being 
leveraged to decarbonise other economic 
sectors and enable customer choice

Changes to insurance premiums and  
coverage over assets, and increasing capital 
requirements 
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Health and safety

Safety First is our number one value – we respect 
and take care of each other, our community, 
and the environment. While the past year has 
presented some significant and unexpected 
challenges, we have maintained a good level  
of safety performance through great teamwork, 
planning, communication, and the professional 
attitude of our competent, resilient workforce. 
There is always room for improvement in health 
and safety, and we cannot ever afford to be 
complacent, particularly with the number of high 
risks our business manages every day as we 
operate and maintain the network. 

Safety Maturity Strategy 
In accordance with our four-year strategic plan, 
our Safety Maturity Strategy has shifted its focus 
from ‘Engage and Empower’ to ‘Critical Risks 
and Fatality Prevention’. This year we kicked 
off our Work Health and Safety Critical Risk 
Management (WHS-CRM) workshops where, 
through consultation with our employees, we’re 
working to establish a very clear and consistent 
understanding of the top 16 critical risks they 
face, and the controls required to protect them. 
As we move through the process, we’ll be 
updating and refining our Golden Safety Rules 
to include these and provide clarity around the 
performance requirements of the associated 
critical controls.

Aligning with our Safety Maturity Strategy, we’ve 
continued our Safety Leadership Program to upskill 
our leaders in fundamental work health and 
safety risk assessment requirements, including 
both physical and psychological risk. 

These courses continue to be delivered until all 
business leaders, from our operational Team 
Coordinators to our Heads of Function have  
been trained.

Looking forward to 2021-22, we plan to complete 
WHS-CRM workshops for the top 16 risks and 
establish a critical control health monitoring 
system. This will provide us with transparency 
in terms of the application and performance of 
critical controls in our day-to-day operations and 
take us closer to achieving our vision, ‘everyone 
goes home safe and healthy every day’.

Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
Creating a healthy workplace represents a 
vital investment in our people. Our Health and 
Wellbeing Program includes dedicated resources 
within our Safety, Environment, Quality and 
Training Function to deliver the program; facilities 
through our Property and Fleet team, to support 
mental and physical health and wellbeing; and 
executive endorsement and an executive sponsor 
for the program.

The program has created a workplace where 
recognising and strengthening the preventative 
side of mental and physical health outcomes is 
as important as being prepared to support those 
who are suffering from ill health or physical injury.

In May we were recognised by Healthier 
Workplace WA with a Gold Recognition award, 
granted to workplaces leading the way in 
demonstrating strong and ongoing health and 
wellbeing policies, infrastructure that encourages 
healthy behaviour, and education and awareness. 

We were selected as finalists in two categories of the 2021 
Australian Workplace Health & Safety Awards for our Health 
and Wellbeing Program.

We successfully adapted safety training due to COVID-19.
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In June 2021 our program also qualified as a 
finalist in two award categories at the Australian 
Workplace Health and Safety Awards, which 
provide national recognition to organisations  
and individuals who demonstrate excellence  
and innovation in the field of Workplace Health 
and Safety.

360 Aware – GamePlan Campaign 
Our 360 Aware platform emphasises how 
important it is for people to be aware of their 
surroundings before undertaking work close to 
the electricity network, and to develop a game 
plan for safety and what to do if accidental 
contact with electricity occurs. 
Our successful GamePlan campaign encourages 
an ‘elite athlete mindset’ in workplaces and this 
year promoted our 360 Aware online training tool 
to educate and support businesses. Available 
for free, the tool features interactive videos and 
activities to educate users about what’s required 
to work safely near the network. Users can 
generate a certificate upon completion.

This year we further developed our GamePlan 
digital campaign with the addition of a series of 
‘Rituals’ advertisements – online videos featuring 
the individual daily rituals a tradesman might 
undertake before work. It encourages everyone 
to add considering electricity to their daily rituals 
to avoid injury risks, asset damage  
or unnecessary outages. 

Make the Safe Call Campaign 
This year our new look ‘Make the Safe Call’ 
campaign told the stories of characters Jan and 
Jim and their powerline mishaps. It was designed 
to create an awareness of a clear course of 
action for people who find themselves in potential 
danger from an electrical emergency.

In all campaign scenarios, messaging reinforces 
that Western Power will provide help and should 
be contacted. 

This simple message is further explored through 
online campaign content that explains how 
the community can avoid these situations by 
tying down loose items before a storm, hiring a 
professional to cut down trees and planting away 
from powerlines to ensure the safety of individuals 
and the community. 

Shocks and Tingles
Throughout 2020 Western Power partnered with 
Horizon Power and the Department of Mines, 
Industry Regulation and Safety’s Building and 
Energy Division to deliver a State-wide safety 
campaign to educate the public on how to 
respond if they experience an electrical shock  
or tingle at home.

The campaign highlighted that Western Power 
was the priority point of call for all electrical 
incidents and emergencies within the home.  
It provided education on the most likely causes 
of shocks and tingles, and how to take the 
necessary steps to keep safe.

The campaign resulted in an incredible 278 per 
cent increase in reports of shocks and tingles 
during the campaign period. While 44 per cent 
of these reported incidents were not detected to 
have been caused by hazardous voltage, it was 
encouraging to see that this important message 
resonated with our customers, and they knew to 
call Western Power when an incident occurred.

Gameplan encourages an elite athlete mindset in workplaces. We continue to increase awareness about staying eight 
metres away from fallen powerlines and poles. 
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Our People

Our people are at the heart of 
Western Power - they play a vital role 
in creating an innovative, safe, and 
enjoyable workplace, living our values 
and delivering exceptional service to 
the communities in which we operate.

We’re committed to creating career opportunities 
for young Western Australians through a range 
of entry level programs and this year welcomed 
15 apprentices, five trainees and six graduates, 
as well as providing vacation work placements 
to university-level engineering students and 
supporting industry relevant scholarships. 

This year we introduced a new Aboriginal 
and Torres Strait Islander Certificate II in 
Electrotechnology scholarship, and eight 
positions will be offered to successful 
candidates, providing direct career pathways 
to apprenticeships in 2022 and beyond. Our 
work-integrated learning placements continue to 
prove successful, with placements of secondary 
students for work experience providing pathways 
to mechanical apprenticeships in our Property 
and Fleet team.

Our Employee Value Proposition 
The Western Power employee value proposition 
(EVP) outlines the key values, benefits, and 
experiences that we offer our employees. 

Delivering on our EVP is critical in attracting 
and retaining key talent, and providing an 
environment for our people to thrive. 

The EVP contains eight key pillars: Work That 
Matters, Community Connection, Experts 
With Passion, Inclusive Culture, Growth and 
Development, Flexible Work, Recognition and 
Remuneration and Benefits. These are integrated 
into our annual employee engagement survey 
allowing us to measure how we’re tracking 
against each pillar, and to develop key future 
people initiatives when a gap is identified.

Employee Engagement Survey 2021

In 2021, 64 per cent of our people completed 
the survey and results demonstrated a very 
healthy level of employee engagement with a 
score of 82 per cent highlighting positivity about 
working for Western Power and commitment to 
the success of the business. Overall, employees 
were most positive about being proud of Western 
Power and our reputation within the community, 
our commitment towards safety, the way we 
recognise and support each other within teams, 
and our flexible working arrangements. Feedback 
received from the survey will form the basis of 
the development of our organisational Workforce 
Strategy 2022.

Growth and 
Development
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We have implemented a number of Diversity and Inclusion 
initiatives during the year.
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Leadership Development

In 2021 we continued our Leadership 
Development journey, with the Senior Leadership 
Team completing an assessment process to 
provide insights into their key areas of strength, 
as well as highlighting some focus areas for 
improvement. 

Given the success of this program, in 2022 we 
will look to cascade the suite of assessments 
and tools to our entire leadership cohort via 
scheduled summit events. These provide 
opportunities for our leaders to come together, 
share experiences and challenges, build strong 
cross functional networks and instil an aligned 
leadership approach across the business.

COVID-19 adaptions and remote working

In response to COVID-19 during 2020, we initiated 
a two week rotating roster for office-based  
employees where 50 per cent worked remotely 
and 50 per cent worked in the office. This approach 
demonstrated that it was not only feasible, but 
also often beneficial, for employees to work  
remotely on a more routine basis. As a result,  
we commenced a six-month remote working trial, 
allowing employees to work remotely based on  
a set of guiding principles.

The trial showed that remote working delivered a 
range of positive impacts for employees and the 
business; employee wellbeing and satisfaction 
increased; our ability to operate through  
COVID-19 related disruptions was supported; our 
people’s carbon footprint was reduced overall; 
and, there were clear potential for cost savings 
like office space in the future. The trial showed 
no notable impacts on productivity and culture, 
instead illustrating that employee connections 
with Western Power and between teammates 
remained strong. As a result of these outcomes, 
the working remotely trial will transition to our 
business-as-usual operations.

Diversity and Inclusion

In the past 12 months our Diversity and Inclusion 
initiatives have matured, with the appointment of 
a principal consultant and the establishment of 

six Employee Network Groups (ENGs) for a range 
of diversity groups – First Nations, Culturally and 
Linguistically Diverse, Diverse Sexualities and 
Genders, Women, People with Disability and 
Youth/Age. 

Each group includes Senior Leadership  
Team representatives and a diverse range  
of employees, to clearly communicate  
diversity and inclusion activities and connect 
them to broader business objectives. To ensure 
support, strategic governance and leadership 
to drive key initiatives, a Diversity and Inclusion 
Committee (DAIC) was established.

Western Power Diversity and Inclusion 
initiatives and events

• WorkABILITY Day – an annual event that   
 brings together employers and job seekers,  
 broadening awareness about the skills and  
 experience that those with health conditions  
 including mental illness, disability or injury   
 can bring to a workplace. For WorkABILITY  
 Day this year, Western Power’s Property   
 and Fleet team welcomed 10 people across  
 Perth office and depots to participate in work  
 experience placements, providing exposure  
 to a range of operational and non-operational  
 work activities and team cultures. 

• Western Power made a clear commitment  
 to Reconciliation through the establishment  
 of our Reflect Reconciliation Action Plan   
 (RAP). This year progress towards   
 reconciliation continued with active   
 champions within the business working to  
 deliver RAP initiatives at every level of the  
 organisation by developing and implementing  
 the new Innovate RAP. To further support our  
 Innovate RAP commitments, Western   
 Power has signed partnership agreements  
 with the Wirrpanda Foundation and Clontarf  
 Foundation, targeting entry-level pathway   
 positions through sport and art.

• For a second consecutive year, we   
 collaborated with other Government   
 Trading Entity (GTE) peers to participate  
 in the Choose to Challenge event hosted 
 by The University of Western Australia for   
 International Women’s Day. 
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 An internal event, hosted by our Women’s   
 ENG, showcased a panel of team members  
 reflecting on how they “choose to challenge”,  
 along with short videos illustrating lived   
 experiences and demonstrating organisation  
 commitments to gender equity. 

• We continue to be an active member of the  
 National Disability Services (NDS) Building the  
 Talent Pool pilot program, delivering a   
 series of workshops to raise awareness   
 and competence when recruiting people   
 with disabilities. A full review of the sourcing 
 and selection of job applicants with a   
 disclosed disability is now underway, along  
 with training being delivered in how to use  
 Section 66 of the Equal Opportunity Act   
 1984 to support hiring decisions and retention  
 strategies. By partnering with specialist  
 disability recruitment service providers,  
 we hope to increase representation of people  
 with disabilities in our workforce, ensuring the  
 experiences of both the candidate and  
 relevant hiring manager are positive.

• IDAHOBIT Day – on 17 May, Western Power  
 team members participated in a morning of  
 activities to observe International Day   
 Against Homophobia, Biphobia, Interphobia  
 and Transphobia (IDAHOBIT). Planned and  
 hosted by our Diverse Sexualities and   
 Genders (DSG) ENG, the celebration brought  
 together employees from across the   
 organisation, including regional depots.

Unintentional Underpayments

In 2019 we identified an error in the way the 
‘better off overall’ test had been applied to 
the employment terms of some employees on 
Individual or Flexibility Agreements (IFAs) against 
the underpinning conditions of the Australian 
Services Union Enterprise Agreement (ASU EA). 
Over the past 12 months we commenced back 
payments to impacted current employees, 
rectifying pay point progression entitlements, 
superannuation, and associated interest. 

We subsequently entered into an Enforceable 
Undertaking with the Fair Work Ombudsman 
(FWO), requiring the organisation to engage 
an independent expert to audit all aspects of 
how we calculated and made repayments to 
current and former employees. This audit was 
undertaken by Deloitte over a six-month period. 
Confirmation was received from the FWO in 
June that Western Power’s approach and final 
payments had been fully accepted. The only 
remaining obligations under the Enforceable 
Undertaking are the completion of two 
independent audits of payments to employees  
on IFAs over the 2020-21 and 2021-22  
financial years.

IDAHOBIT Day. Our Mosaic Team celebrating Harmony Week.
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Engagement event Date Description

Nannup Community  
meeting 22 September 2020 Nannup community regarding Advanced Metering 

Infrastructure access point installation.

Perth CBD RMU  
Automation September 2020

Door knock and letter drop to residents and 
businesses ahead of construction works for 
automation upgrades in the CBD.

Merredin Board Visit 5/6 October 2020
Regional board meeting and various stakeholder 
engagement events including lunch with major 
customers, site tours.

Wooroloo bushfire 
community meetings 3-20 February 2021

Daily updates and advice to community members 
evacuated from their homes. Spoke at seven 
community meetings and maintained a presence 
at the recovery centre for the duration of the event.

Shire of Moora Briefing 17 February 2021 Briefing on network upgrades, maintenance 
programs and local challenges.

Tropical Cyclone Seroja  
community meetings 14 March – 7 May 2021

Updates, assisting with outage claims and general 
advice to community members affected. Spoke 
at more than 20 community meetings, attended 
recovery centres every day over a four week period 
throughout all Shires affected. Also separately 
briefed Local Government Authorities on details  
on our restoration and responded to issues on  
the ground. 

Gidgegannup Progress 
Association community 
meeting

17 May 2021
Update on upgrade works completed during the 
Wooroloo bushfire and respond to concerns about 
vegetation issues and outages throughout the year. 

Access Arrangement 5 
Community and Customer 
Engagement Program

October 2020 – June 2021

Significant research to gain an understanding 
of what our diverse range of customers and 
stakeholders value in relation to the services we 
offer and deliver. This information will inform our 
AA5 submission. It included large scale surveys, 
regional workshops and focus groups, individual 
interviews covering all customers segments, 
targeted engagement with vulnerable groups 
and two reference groups which met on multiple 
occasions. The reference groups will continue  
into next financial year.

Regional shows

Narrogin Emergency 
Services day 29 January 2021

Regional show held by Department of Fire 
and Emergency Services/WA Police for local 
community

Community engagement

Our Community Engagement team continues  
to engage with stakeholders on a range of 
Western Power initiatives. These include 
emerging technology projects, capital works 
projects, customer funded work, planned 

maintenance works, attendance at regional 
field days, liaising with landowners and building 
relationships with Traditional Owners.  
The table below provides a summary of some of 
the events attended in the 2020-21 financial year. 
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Circuit breakers

Western Power’s innovative and exciting science 
school-based engagement program Circuit 
Breakers expanded in 2020-21. The science, 
technology, engineering and mathematics (STEM) 
outreach program fosters primary students’ 
involvement, awareness and enjoyment of STEM, 
and is available to all schools.

During the past year 90 schools have used our 
program reaching thousands of students as well 
as building the confidence of many teachers in 
STEM teaching.

The program immerses students in the STEM 
processes of creating their own electrical network 
of the future thereby building understanding and 
skills using Micro:bit mini-computers and coding 
activities. 

Designed collaboratively by teachers and 
engineers, it engages and challenges Year 4-6 
students to think outside the box, widen their 
decision-making and use their imagination.

Schools were supported by visiting STEM 
professionals from Western Power and provided 
with heavily discounted technology kits required 
to bolster future STEM learning capabilities.

A survey conducted showed that the program 
increased student’s STEM skills and increased 
teacher confidence in delivering STEM with 93.5 
per cent giving the program four or five stars  
out of five. 

Teacher quotes:

“It was such a dynamic, engaging experience. 
I have many students wanting to keep going, 
even now they are looking for high schools with 
Engineering programs as a focus.”

“The program is a fantastic way to get your class 
involved in project based learning and thinking 
about their future. The group work component 
teaches students that they need to work with a 
variety of personality types. The lessons were 
very hands on and multi-sensory which suited  
the age for DESIGNgroups of students.”

Circuit Breakers continues to grow with 90 schools using our program during the year.
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Our story | Caring for our 
environment
Caring for the environment is a key priority for us, 
whether it be protecting threatened flora 
species through practising dieback prevention 
and installing guards on powerlines to 
prevent possum injury to ensuring we meet 
environmental standards. Every project we do 
from building microgrids to putting up powerlines 
or laying underground cables, or installing 
smart streetlights goes through a rigorous 
environmental assessment.

Our Safety, Health and Environment Policy 
incorporates principles on sustainable 
environmental management and protecting 
the natural environment, through appropriate 
planning and design of the network.

We recognise that habitat loss is one of the 
greatest threats to WA’s unique biodiversity, as 
such we appropriately assess and put measures 
in place to protect and conserve the natural 
environment we’re working in. The State’s South 
West is an international environmental biodiversity 
hotspot, one of only 36 globally recognised 
hotspots with flora and fauna found nowhere 
else in the world. The need to protect these 
characteristics is recognised in various State  
and Federal legislation and we’re committed  
to meeting legislated environmental, heritage  
and planning obligations.

Environmental assessments are undertaken for 
all activities associated with the life-cycle of the 
network, non-network assets and new projects 
including environmental impact, heritage and 
planning assessments. Additionally we have 
processes in place to manage oil and chemical 
spills and contaminated sites including the 
identification, assessment and remediation of 

Western Power sites that could impact soil  
and groundwater.  

This year we continued to collaborate with the 
Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and 
Attractions (DBCA) in implementing initiatives 
to conserve wildlife. We recently embarked on 
a community project to build nesting boxes for 
the multiple birds species, including the three 
threatened native black cockatoo species; we 
continued to translocate bee hives rather than 
euthanise hives found on our infrastructure and 
work with community environment groups to find 
alternative solutions for bird nests such as eagle 
and osprey nests on our poles.

We’ve extended our commitment to ensuring 
our staff are trained in environmental processes 
with the recent development of an online 
module for Green Card training which will be 
delivered by the end of 2021. The course teaches 
biosecurity principles and dieback prevention 
and is mandatory for our operational personnel. 
It will eventually be adapted and offered to 
external customers. We’ve worked closely with 
Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and 
Attractions and the Dieback Working Group 
during the development process.

We’ve successfully completed a trial of a 
standardised Enviro Bund for transformers, which 
involved the design, manufacture, procurement, 
installation and testing of the precast concrete oil 
containment bund. This was followed by internal 
and industry stakeholder consultation and we 
anticipate that from the first half of 2022 this bund 
will be required in environmentally sensitive areas 
to protect environmental values. 

In a first, we’ve recently explored using synthetic 
ester oils to insulate transformers, rather than 
petroleum-based mineral oils. Depending on 
the voltage and power rating, our transmission 
network transformers can store between 10,000 
to 120,000 litres of oil – enough to fill two medium 
backyard swimming pools. Synthetic ester oils 
offer a number of advantages over mineral oils. 
It increases fire safety, is environmentally friendly 
and provides higher performance benefiting the 
operation and maintenance of our network. The 
trial will see three synthetic ester oil transformers 
purchased and installed in future projects. 
Reduction of substation safety and environmental 
risks along with reduced installation costs are 
some of the success factors to be measured  
as part of this trial. 

Possum guard installed.
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The directors of Electricity Networks Corporation trading as Western Power (Western Power) present 
this report in accordance with Schedule 4, clause 6 of the Electricity Corporations Act 2005 (WA) (Act).

Western Power’s directors 
The below persons were directors of Western Power as at the date of this report:

Name Duration

Colin Beckett AO (Board Chair) From 29/04/2015

Greg Martin (Deputy Board Chair) From 29/04/2015

Kathryn Barrie From 28/05/2019

Elisa Fear From 01/11/2020

Denise Goldsworthy AO From 01/01/2018

Monish Paul From 01/11/2020

Eva Skira AM From 22/11/2017

Directors who retired during the current reporting year

Peter Iancov retired as director on 31 October 2020 (appointed as a director in April 2015).

Directors’ report
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Information on directors as at the date of this report

Legend 
ARC = Audit and Risk Committee     RNC = Remuneration and Nominations Committee

SHESC = Safety, Health, Environment and Sustainability Committee

Directors’ report (continued)

Director Profile Committee 
responsibilities

Colin Beckett AO 
 
Board Chair 
Non-executive director

MA (Cantab) 

Appointed with effect from 29/04/2015, current term expires on 09/08/2023. 

Experience and expertise: Mr Beckett retired from a 40 year career in oil and gas in 2014.  
Prior to his retirement he was an executive with Chevron Australia in Perth with responsibility for  
the Gorgon LNG and Domestic Gas Project.

In recent years, Mr Beckett has previously held the following non-executive positions:

• Chair of Perth Airport Pty Ltd

• Chancellor of Curtin University.

Mr Beckett has a Master of Arts in Engineering from Cambridge University. He is a graduate 
member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. 

Current directorship: Deputy Chair and non‐executive director of Beach Energy Pty Ltd.

RNC member

SHESC member

Greg Martin 
 
Deputy Board Chair 
Non-executive director

B.Ec 
LLB 
FAIM 
MAICD

Appointed with effect from 29/04/2015, current term expires on 09/08/2024.

Experience and expertise: Mr Martin has nearly 40 years’ experience in the energy, utility and 
infrastructure sectors, having spent 25 years with the Australian Gas Light Company Limited (AGL), 
including five years as Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director. After leaving AGL, Mr Martin 
was the Chief Executive Officer of the infrastructure division of Challenger Financial Services Group 
and, subsequently, Managing Director of Murchison Metals Limited.

Mr Martin is currently appointed as a partner of FutureNow Ventures.

Current directorships:

• Chair of: 

 − Iluka Resources Limited

 − Hunter Water.

• Non‐executive director of Spark Infrastructure RE Limited.

ARC Chair

Kathryn Barrie 
Non-executive director

B.Bus

Appointed with effect from 28/05/2019, current term expires on 28/05/2022.

Experience and expertise: Ms Barrie has 20 years of experience across the 
energy and education sectors in the Western Australian State Government.

Ms Barrie has over 14 years of energy industry experience gained through roles with the  
State Government’s Energy Policy WA (formerly the Public Utilities Office) and the former Office  
of Energy, with particular focus on energy market regulation, financial analysis and implementing 
major energy reforms.

Prior to joining State Government, Ms Barrie spent 13 years in the private sector, primarily working 
in management consulting firms, gaining a broad range of experience including in developing 
performance reporting frameworks for companies in the energy and insurance sectors.

Ms Barrie holds a bachelor’s degree in business, with majors in finance and accounting.

Current directorship: Not currently a director of any other entity.

RNC member

Elisa Fear 
Non-executive director

B.Comm 
MBA 
GAICD

Appointed with effect from 01/11/2020, current term expires on 31/10/2023.

Experience and expertise: Ms Fear is an accomplished non‐executive director and has spent 
over 10 years on boards within the infrastructure, education, finance and disability services 
industries. Ms Fear has also served on board sub-committees as Chair and member.

Ms Fear brings extensive financial executive experience from roles in investment banking including 
equity capital markets, debt, advisory and venture capital. This is overlaid with solid commercial 
experience from owning and running businesses.

Ms Fear is a graduate member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors and holds a Master 
of Business Administration (Finance).

Ms Fear is committed to providing support for women and children facing domestic violence and 
financial abuse.

Current directorship:

• Non-executive director of:

 − Good Sammy Enterprises

 − Financial Toolbox.

• Member of Curtin University Council.

ARC member

SHESC member
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Directors’ report (continued)

Director Profile Committee 
responsibilities

Denise Goldsworthy AO 
Non-executive director

B.Met (Hons1) 
FAIM 
FTSE 
GAICD

Appointed with effect from 01/01/2018, current term expires on 28/05/2022.

Experience and expertise: Ms Goldsworthy is an experienced non‐executive director and 
advisor on research, technology and innovation. Ms Goldsworthy has senior executive experience 
in manufacturing (steel), infrastructure, mining (iron ore, industrial minerals) and technology/
innovation sectors.

Ms Goldsworthy is the Managing Director and Owner of Alternate Futures – established 
specifically to work at the interface between Australia’s research organisations, tech‐start‐ups  
and industry.

Ms Goldsworthy was named the 2010 Telstra Australian Business Woman of the Year,  
is a member of Chief Executive Women and was inducted into the Western Australian Women’s 
Hall of Fame in 2011.

Current directorships:

• Chair of:

 − ChemCentre

 − Gasgoyne Gateway Ltd

 − the Trustees of the Navy Clearance Diver Trust.

• Non‐executive director of Leichardt Industrials Pty Ltd.

• Deputy Chancellor of Edith Cowan University.

• Member of:

 − Cooperative Research Centres Advisory Committee

 − Curtin University Commercialisation Advisory Board

 − WA Defence Science Centre Advisory Board.

SHESC Chair

RNC member

Monish Paul 
Non-executive director

B.Bus 
MBA

Appointed with effect from 01/11/2020, current term expires on 31/10/2023.

Experience and expertise: Mr Paul has several decades of experience in shaping and  
executing corporate strategy and digital transformation, having worked across a range of 
industries both in the public and private sector.

With substantial executive experience working in IBM, Deloitte, Arthur Anderson, and Federal  
and Western Australian Government, Mr Paul has advised Australian Securities Exchange (ASX) 
200 clients on the intersection of technology and business reinvention in Australia, spanning 
design, development and execution to transform organisations.

The founding curator for the World Economic Forum’s Western Australian Global Shapers Program 
in 2014, Mr Paul holds a Master of Business Administration and is an alumnus of Harvard Business 
School (Executive Program), University of Western Australia and Curtin University.

Current directorships:

• Non-executive director of LandGate

• Member of P&N Bank Brand Advisory Council.

ARC member

SHESC member

Eva Skira AM 
Non-executive director

BA (Hons)
MBA
SF Fin
FAICD
FAIM
FCIS
FGIA

Appointed with effect from 22/11/2017, current term expires on 31/10/2022.

Experience and expertise: Ms Skira has a background in roles across banking, financial 
markets and stockbroking, along with strategic management consulting. Ms Skira also has more 
than 25 years’ experience as a non-executive director.

Ms Skira’s extensive previous board experience with commercial and government boards includes 
roles as Chair of the Water Corporation, Westscheme (the largest superannuation fund in Western 
Australia) and Forest Products Commission.

Current directorships:

• Chair of the Trustees of St John of God Health Care Group.

• Chair of Macmahon Holdings Limited.

• Non-executive director of:

 − WA Parks Foundation

 − Association of Ministerial Public Juridic Person (PJP) Ltd

 − Western Australian Cricket Association (WACA).

RNC Chair

ARC member
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Directors’ attendance at meetings 
The numbers of Board and standing committee meetings held during the reporting year ended 30 June 2021, 
and each director’s attendance at those meetings, are below:

Board
Audit and Risk 

Committee1
Remuneration and 

Nominations Committee

Safety, Health, 
Environment and 

Sustainability Committee2

Attendee Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended

C Beckett AO 7 7 - 3^ 1 1 4 4

G Martin 7 7 4 4 - - - 3^

K Barrie 7 7 - 3^ 1 1 3 3

E Fear 5 5 3 3 - - 3 3

D Goldsworthy AO 7 7 - 3^ 1 1 4 4

M Paul 5 5 3 3 - - 3 3

E Skira AM 7 7 4 4 1 1 - 2^

P Iancov 2 2 1 1 - - - 1̂

^ The director was not a member of the relevant committee, but attended as an invitee 
1 Includes attendance when the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee (until April 2021) 
2 Includes attendance when the Safety, Health, Environment and People Committee (until April 2021)

Company Secretary
In May 2020, Mr Andrew Cook was appointed Western Power’s Acting General Counsel and Executive 
Manager Governance and Assurance having previously acted in the role for several months during the 
2019/20 financial year.

In December 2020, Ms May Lin Chew was appointed Western Power’s General Counsel and Executive 
Manager Governance and Assurance. This executive role includes management of the secretariat, legal, 
corporate compliance, enterprise risk, internal audit and corporate governance areas of the business.  
The position also includes the role of Company Secretary of Western Power, which serves as the contact  
for Western Power’s Board Chair and directors, as well as oversight for the Board and Committee meetings.

Ms Chew’s appointment as Western Power’s Company Secretary follows an extensive career as a  
corporate lawyer in the private sector with a strong focus on the energy industry. With more than 20 years  
of international legal experience including London, Tokyo and The Hague, Ms Chew comes to Western Power 
from Shell where she was Head of Legal for both its Singapore operations and global liquefied natural gas 
(LNG) trading business.

Ms Chew has a Bachelor of Laws from Murdoch University, a Bachelor of Commerce from the University  
of Western Australia, and is admitted as a barrister and solicitor of the Supreme Court of Western Australia.

Ms Chew is also a graduate member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Directors’ report (continued)
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Western Power’s principal activities
The principal continuing functions of Western Power 
are to:

•  manage, plan, develop, expand, enhance, 
improve and reinforce the electricity transmission 
and distribution networks known as the South 
West Interconnected Network (SWIN)

• provide and improve electricity transmission and 
distribution services

•  provide access to services of network 
infrastructure facilities as required and authorised 
by Part 8 of the Electricity Industry Act 2004 
(WA) (which relates to network access)

•  provide ancillary services.

In performing its functions, Western Power must act 
in accordance with prudent commercial principles 
and endeavour to make a profit consistent with 
maximising its long-term value.

There have been no significant changes in the 
nature of Western Power’s principal activities during 
the reporting year ended 30 June 2021.

Review of operations
To avoid duplication of content, please refer to  
the front section within this annual report, including 
the messages from the Board Chair and Chief 
Executive Officer, for information on the operations 
and financial position of Western Power, and its  
business strategies.

Western Power’s operating results 
For the reporting year ended 30 June 2021:

• Western Power achieved a net profit after 
income tax equivalent of $391 million  
(30 June 2020: $391 million)

• Western Power’s net cash flows before 
borrowings were negative $153 million  
(30 June 2020: $138 million). This cash  
deficit was largely financed by $175 million  
in borrowings (30 June 2020: $134 million).

Dividends
Details of the dividends Western Power paid to the Western Australian State Government during the reporting 
years presented, are below:

2020/21 2019/20

Dividends paid $M Payment date $M Payment date

Final dividend 77 16/12/2020 74 17/12/2019

Special dividend 7 16/12/2020 6 17/12/2019

Interim dividend 216 10/07/2020 - -

Total dividends paid 300 80

Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting year
Pursuant to section 126 of the Act, and in line with written notice from the Minister for Energy, the directors 
have recommended a nil dividend for the financial year ended 30 June 2021.

Directors’ report (continued)
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Directors’ report (continued)

Matters subsequent to the end of the 
reporting year
Other than the events disclosed in note 30 of the 
financial statements within this financial report,  
there are no matters or circumstances that have 
arisen since 30 June 2021 and the date of this 
report that are likely, in the opinion of the directors, 
to significantly affect the operations of Western Power, 
the results of those operations, or the state of affairs 
of Western Power in subsequent reporting years.

Current and likely developments and 
their expected results of operations
Current and likely developments in Western 
Power’s operations and their expected results are 
set out below.

Public safety
Western Power is required to maintain and replace 
network assets in a way that acceptably delivers 
to the community a safe, reliable and affordable 
connection to energy.

All electrical networks in Australia including the  
SWIN, have an inherent level of risk in operation.  
This risk arises from environmental and weather 
related factors, which are outside of the operator’s 
control, as well as from risks that are identified as part 
of the operation’s strategies.

Safety risks associated with Western Power’s 
network are managed in accordance with the 
asset management system. This system meets the 
requirements of the transmission and distribution 
licenses issued by Western Power’s regulator, the 
Economic Regulation Authority, and has been 
independently:

•  assessed as compliant with the requirements of 
Australian Standard (AS) 5577 Electricity network 
safety management systems

•  certified against the International Organisation 
for Standardisation (ISO) 55001: 2014 Asset 
management – management systems.

Western Power’s asset management system ensures 
continued management of the network in an effective 
and sustainable manner considering the risk posed.

Asset utilisation
Western Power’s grid is in a period of transition,  
with existing network assets – largely built prior to 
1965 – ageing, with a high proportion in the second 
half or approaching the end of their expected service 
life. This is at the same time technological progress  
is rapidly reducing the cost of alternatives to traditional 
poles and wires.

In general, older network assets pose a greater risk, 
with the frequency and severity of failures expected 
to increase as the assets age. Western Power’s 
annual ‘state of the infrastructure’ report as published 
on the website, details the current state and level 
of performance of the network, and highlights the 
associated risks.

The combination of Western Power’s ageing network 
assets and period of major technological change 
presents a challenging and complex investment 
environment. This is especially as Western Power 
strives to meet community expectations, including 
more reliable and increasingly renewable electricity 
at a fair price, by evolving the current centralised 
network as safely and as affordably as possible,  
to a “modular grid” made up of the following zones:

1. A tightly meshed urban network focussing on 
underground assets including (where possible)  
for the replacement of end of service overhead 
assets, and increasing amounts of renewable  
and distributed energy resources (DER) such as 
roof‐top solar systems and large‐scale windfarms

2. A hybrid network of mostly overhead assets but 
with the integration of new technologies including 
stand‐alone power systems (SPS)

3. An autonomous stand‐alone network of remote 
power systems including SPS and microgrids.

Evolution to the above is expected to take a decade 
of transformational investment in Western Power’s 
existing network assets and new technology. This 
includes for:

• improved integration and coordination of DER 
on the grid aided by Western Power’s advance 
metering infrastructure allowing greater visibility  
of network power flows;
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•  the modernisation of DER connection standards; 
and

• increased amounts of grid-connected storage 
to help balance periods of low demand and 
intermittent supply.

Distributed Energy Resources
The rise in distributed energy resources (DER) – 
including roof‐top solar systems, battery storage, 
electric vehicles and microgrids – is fundamentally 
changing the energy value chain and driving 
increasingly complex consumption and production 
patterns. This continues to challenge the historical 
approach of delivering electricity one‐way across  
a centralised network.

The integration of DER into Western Power’s 
traditional network presents both opportunities and 
challenges. The opportunity is to leverage these 
small‐scale devices to:

•  improve the safety and reliability of existing 
network services while lowering costs; and

•  provide new products, solutions and choices  
to customers and the energy market.

These opportunities are tempered by technical 
network issues and barriers, which if not effectively 
coordinated could continue to exacerbate voltage 
management and system security risks, requiring 
intervention.

To support these opportunities and address the 
challenges, the State Government released a 
DER roadmap in April 2020 as part of their Energy 
Transformation Strategy. This Strategy, announced  
by the Minister for Energy in March 2019 aims to 
respond to the energy transformation underway 
and to plan for the future of the Western Australian 
power system. Its outcomes will influence how 
Western Power re‐shapes the business to adopt the 
changing energy mix, evolve grid solutions, connect 
customers, and how customers interact with the grid. 
The Strategy will also influence Western Power’s fifth 
access arrangement regulatory submission.

The State Government’s DER roadmap forms part  
of Western Power’s plan to future‐proof the network 
so as to continue to seamlessly connect homes, 
businesses and essential community infrastructure 
to an increasingly dynamic energy mix. The roadmap 
will help Western Power support high levels of DER 
on the network ensuring safe, secure and affordable 
electricity supply now and in the future.

Western Power remains a key supporter of the 
Energy Transformation Strategy and DER roadmap, 
and continues to work with the State Government 
(including the Energy Transformation Taskforce and 
Implementation Unit), other energy partners and the 
Western Australian community to implement.

Climate change: decarbonisation
As the community remains committed to neutralising 
carbon dioxide emissions, Western Power is taking 
action to address climate change. This includes 
supporting decarbonisation of the network through 
the following key initiatives:

• On‐going replacement of standard streetlights 
with LED lights that not only emit less carbon,  
but also provide a longer life cycle and brighter, 
more uniform illumination

• More extensive roll‐out of SPS expected to reduce 
Western Power’s carbon footprint through the 
replacement and/or removal of large stretches  
of overhead network, and to shift energy supply 
to more renewable sources such as solar and 
battery storage.

In addition, Western Power continues to monitor 
emerged and emerging pathways to best and most 
responsibly capture other opportunities presented. 
This includes in the following areas:

• Electricity – the clear pathway to decarbonising 
electricity is renewable generation such as wind, 
solar and battery power.  

Renewable generation creates new challenges for 
Western Power including the connection of these 
technologies to the grid. To assist in this, the 
‘foundation regulatory frameworks’ work stream  
of the State Government’s Energy Transformation 
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Strategy proposes the introduction of a Security 
Constrained Economic Dispatch market in 
October 2022. This market aims to improve 
generator access to Western Power’s network by 
facilitating connection without costly transmission 
augmentation – thereby helping to enable access 
to the Wholesale Electricity Market for new  
low‐cost and cleaner generation technologies.

• Transport – the emerged pathway to 
decarbonising transport is electric vehicles 

Western Power remains committed to capturing 
opportunities presented by more electric vehicles 
– albeit whilst avoiding over‐investment in the 
technology prior to broad adoption. This includes 
support of the State Government’s development 
of an electric vehicle strategy to transition the 
transport sector to a low emissions future.

• Industry – the emerging pathway to decarbonising 
industry is electrification, being the increasing 
replacement of fossil fuels, such as natural gas 
and petrol, with electricity 

Electrification has the potential to increase 
demand for Western Power’s products and 
services. In support of this, Western Power 
continues to leverage business capabilities in the 
development of opportunities in this area.

Customer capabilities
The cohort of grid customers of the future will be 
materially more diverse than today’s customer group. 
Future grid customers will be increasingly more 
informed, more active and more engaged in the 
production and consumption of electricity. Future 
customers will make choices that will impact network 
investment decisions – changing how Western Power 
is required to operate.

Alternative supply options will increasingly make 
economic sense for specific customers or groups. 
The costs of technological substitutes for grid 
supplied electricity such as roof‐top solar systems 
and batteries will continue to decline. Customers are 
expected to continue investing in these alternatives  
to lower their electricity costs.

New participants will also enter the supply chain 
creating new partnership opportunities that will 
enable Western Power to add value to the community 
in ways not previously contemplated and will also 
challenge Western Power’s existing operating model.

Western Power will need to ensure it has the  
relevant customer capabilities to operate in this more 
complex future.

Cyber security
Western Power like all businesses, must ensure 
it invests in appropriate levels of cyber security 
infrastructure to protect operations from on‐going and 
increasing levels of threats. This is heightened with 
Western Power’s introduction and support of remote 
working options since the COVID‐19 pandemic.

Western Power too, being a critical infrastructure 
provider to Western Australia and key part of 
Australia’s overall electricity supply, must ensure 
that its core service of delivering safe, reliable and 
affordable energy to the community, is protected from 
interference from individuals and organised attackers 
who may have a varied range of motivations.

Western Power is responding to these requirements 
by making targeted investments to protect itself from 
immediate threats as they arise, whilst executing a 
long‐term program to continuously lift the maturity of 
its cyber security defence capabilities. The scope of 
this uplift is a prioritised, risk driven program providing 
a broad and thorough treatment of all cyber security 
domains based on the Australian Energy Sector 
Cyber Security Framework.

While these efforts are managed from within Western 
Power, there is a high level of coordination with other 
industry participants, and both state and federal 
government bodies.
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Environmental, heritage and planning 
performance
Western Power’s activities are subject to State and 
Commonwealth environmental legislation, with some 
locations and projects covered by specific approval 
conditions, environmental licences and permits 
issued by the State.

Western Power holds a purpose permit to allow 
self‐assessment for the clearing of native vegetation 
under certain circumstances. During 2020/21, 24 
internal clearing permits were issued. An estimated 
total of 2.78 hectares of native vegetation was 
cleared during the year under 22 separate internal 
clearing permits.

Western Power holds a licence for the bulk storage 
of oil at Kewdale Depot. The annual audit of the site 
identified four medium risk findings and one high 
risk finding, which were reported to the Department 
of Water and Environmental Regulation (DWER). No 
impact to the environment was identified from the 
audit, no significant incidents occurred at this site 
and no complaints were received during the audited 
period.

Western Power holds six dangerous goods 
licences for the storage of sulfur hexafluoride (an 
insulating gas used in electrical equipment) and 
liquid petroleum gas. There was one remediation 
notice issued by the Department of Mines, Industry 
Regulation and Safety during the 2020/21 period, 
with Western Power committing to completion of 
the required measures by 31 December 2020. 
Further actions to address this notice continue to be 
managed by Western Power.

Western Power assets operate under a number of 
approvals issued under the Environmental Protection 
(Noise) Regulations 1997 (WA) due to noise from 
transformers and their cooling fans. Western Power 
is awaiting advice from the DWER in respect to 
the requested amendment of the Environmental 
Protection (Western Power Transmission Substation 
Noise Emissions) Approval 2005, which has been 
under consideration by the Minister for Environment 
since 2019.

Western Power is required to report significant 
environmental incidents to its regulators as soon 
as practicable. During the 2020/21 financial year 
Western Power reported nine environmental 
incidents caused by operations, seven of which 
were oil leaks from transformers, and the other two 
associated with fauna impact.

Acts of vandalism on the network that require 
environmental remediation are also reported.

Investigation, remediation and rehabilitation of each 
of the oil leak sites is undertaken in consultation 
with environmental regulators, while matters of 
fauna impact are also investigated and controls (i.e. 
bird diverters/possum guards) put in place both 
proactively and reactively to minimise the risk of 
recurrence in sensitive areas.

Western Power’s Environmentally Sensitive Area 
(ESA) Program continues to support environmentally 
conscious access and land management across 
the network. In 2020/21 there were 627 requests for 
ESA procedures, with 19 inspections conducted as 
part of improvement to the ESA Program.

In agreement with the DWER, Western Power 
prepares a six‐monthly report of any spills or leaks 
in Underground Water Pollution Control Areas 
(UWPCAs), which are in place to protect Perth’s 
drinking water. A total of 17 oil leaks within UWPCA’s 
were reported to DWER for the six months from 
June to December 2020, a further 10 leaks in 
UWPCA’s have been identified year to date and will 
be reported to DWER in accordance with the six‐
monthly review cycle.

Western Power reported three suspected or 
known contaminated sites to DWER during the 
year. Additionally, 47 site investigations and 31 soil 
remediation projects were initiated. Environmental 
risk assessments were also completed at 28 sites 
for identification and prioritisation of activities under 
Western Power’s Contaminated Sites Program.

Western Power has not been notified by the  
Western Australian Planning Commission or any 
other relevant planning bodies of non‐compliance, 
nor been required to submit notification to the 
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Ministers for Energy or Planning in respect of works, 
pursuant to section 60 of the Act.

As required under Western Power’s Aboriginal 
Heritage Agreements, three activity notices were 
submitted to the South West Aboriginal Land and 
Sea Council in 2020/21, with two activity notice 
responses received, requiring aboriginal heritage 
surveys and one requiring approval under the 
Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972 (WA). 

Western Power continues to investigate and 
implement enhancements to its waste management 
approach. In 2020/21 there were 260 controlled 
waste requests, with 2,200 tonnes of wood pole 
waste disposed from depots, representing 20 per 
cent of Western Power’s total approved waste 
tonnages at those depots. Western Power also 
renewed its wood pole controlled waste exemption 
in April 2021.

Indemnity and insurance of directors 
and officers
Western Power has entered into a deed of indemnity 
with each director. The respective deeds provide that:

• Western Power indemnifies the director against 
all liabilities and costs relating to proceedings 
that are anticipated, threatened or commenced 
against the director in relation to matters arising 
in the course of the director acting in connection 
with the affairs of Western Power, or otherwise 
concerning the director holding office as a director 
of Western Power

• the indemnity does not extend to claims against 
the director by Western Power or a subsidiary, 
or to any liability or claim arising out of conduct 
involving a lack of good faith.

Western Power holds a directors’ and officers’ liability 
insurance policy. Subject to the applicable terms 
and conditions, the policy will pay to or on behalf 
of an insured person, or reimburse Western Power 
for any loss paid to an insured person, in relation 
to a claim or claims made against them jointly or 
severally during the period of insurance by reason 
of any wrongful act (as defined by the policy) in their 
capacity as a director or officer of Western Power.

At the date of this report no successful claims have 
been made against the directors’ and officers’ 
component of the policy.

Western Power has not entered into a deed of 
indemnity with, and does not hold an insurance 
policy for, the external auditor.

Significant regulatory changes
Electricity Networks Access Code Amendments 
(No. 2) 2020
In September 2020, the Electricity Networks Access 
Code Amendments (No. 2) 2020 (WA) (Amendments) 
were gazetted by the State Government – forming the 
largest suite of changes to the Electricity Networks 
Access Code 2004 (WA) (Access Code) since 
inception. The Amendments seek to:

• increase opportunities for new technologies,

• maximise utilisation of existing network 
infrastructure; and

• improve the access arrangement process.

This follows the passing of the Electricity Industry 
Amendment Bill 2019 (WA) (Bill) in April 2020, which 
granted regulatory approval for Western Power to 
offer new energy products, solutions and choices 
to the community outside those of the current 
centralised network – specifically stand‐alone power 
systems (SPS) and energy storage devices.

SPS are proving to be a more reliable, renewable  
and economic alternative to traditional poles and 
wires – particularly in low‐population density rural  
and remote areas.

More recently, SPS have played an important part in 
efficiently restoring power following natural disasters – 
being deployed to remote and areas with challenging 
terrain affected by the Wooroloo bushfire in February 
2021 and Tropical Cyclone Seroja in April 2021.

Energy storage devices such as batteries, are 
increasingly important in managing the influx of  
roof‐top solar systems on the network – being they 
can store excess energy throughout the day for release 
when required to stabilise the electricity system. 

Directors’ report (continued)



44     |    Western Power Annual Report 2021

Community batteries are currently being trialled by 
Western Power as part of the PowerBank project 
– whereby a large‐scale battery is placed within a 
neighbourhood providing residents a virtual storage 
option for excess energy generation.

Access arrangement 5

Access to Western Power’s network is regulated 
under the Electricity Networks Access Code 2004 
(WA) (Access Code), which requires Western Power 
to submit a revised access arrangement (AA) to the 
Economic Regulation Authority (ERA) every five years. 
The AA defines the financial limits and performance 
targets for Western Power, and the expected 
outcomes for customers.

Western Power is required to submit the proposed 
AA for the fifth access period (AA5) to the ERA by  
1 February 2022. AA5 will cover the period from  
1 July 2022 to 30 June 2027.

The final decision for AA5 is not due to be published 
until early 2023 therefore, the actual commencement 
of AA5 will be one year later (1 July 2023). This results 
in a gap year (1 July 2022 – 30 June 2023) – similar to 
the transition which occurred in AA4.

Western Power is proposing to apply the same gap 
year concept for AA5 as AA4. This means AA5 will 
continue to have a five‐year period, with forecast 
operating and capital expenditure for all five years to 
be approved as part of the AA determination process. 
However, for the gap year only, it will be necessary to 
agree up front certain key principles to apply – being 
the AA5 determination process will not finalised by  
1 July 2022.

In it’s draft decision on the framework and approach 
to apply for AA5, the ERA published a number of 
decisions that will apply for the 2022/23 financial year. 
These include:

• the AA5 decision will determine total target 
revenue for the five‐year period from 1 July 2022. 
Western Power’s current price list will apply until 
the revised access arrangement comes into 
effect. The ERA will take account of revenue 
received for the period between 1 July 2022 and 
the commencement date of the revised access 
arrangement when determining target revenue for 
the remaining AA5 period.

• the current service standard benchmarks will 
apply until the commencement date of the revised 
access arrangement

• a service standard adjustment mechanism will not 
apply between 1 July 2022 and 30 June 2023.

Other required legislative disclosures
Observance of Western Power’s Code of 
Conduct

Western Power’s Code of Conduct has been 
established to provide guidance on acting responsibly 
and ethically when completing tasks on behalf of 
Western Power.

The Code of Conduct applies to all directors, 
executive officers and employees of Western Power, 
and to all contractors performing activities on behalf 
of Western Power. All personnel have access to 
Western Power’s Code of Conduct.

Section 33 of the Act requires the Board to report to 
the Minister for Energy on observance of the Code of 
Conduct by all Western Power personnel. This report 
is submitted at the same time as Western Power’s 
annual report.

Western Power has also established processes and 
procedures to ensure observance of the Code of 
Conduct.

All Western Power personnel receive annual code of 
conduct and conflicts of interest training.

State Records Act 2000 (WA)

Western Power maintains and supports quality 
record keeping practices in its day‐to‐day business 
activities. Records are managed in accordance 
with the State Records Act 2000 (WA) and Western 
Power’s approved record‐keeping plan.

Regular reviews of Western Power’s record‐keeping 
systems and practices are conducted to ensure 
they remain efficient, effective and reflect business 
requirements.

Personnel, including contractors, are required to 
complete online record‐keeping training prior to 
accessing Western Power’s enterprise document 
management system. Training programs are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis to ensure they reflect evolving 
business processes.

Directors’ report (continued)
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Electoral Act 1907 (WA)
In accordance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907 (WA), the below expenditure (exclusive of  
goods and services tax) was incurred by Western Power during the reporting year ended 30 June 2021. 
This expenditure includes costs associated with public safety and educational campaigns, as well as 
customer mail-outs and notifications.

Category Amount ($) Recipient General nature of work

Advertising agencies 57,994 Advance Press Print production

9,410 Anthologie Animation production

3,668 Birds Eye Media Video production

47,066 Clockwork Print Print production

122,530 CloudStoke Media Video production

343,329 Equilibrium Interactive Website services

18,500 Fremantle Press Print production

64,247 Paper and Spark Digital Agency Digital content

82,216 Signs Ahead Signage and branding

86,205 Studio Orange Animation production

38,331 Workhouse Advertising Photography

704,841 Wunderman Thompson Public safety and education

Sub-total 1,578,337

Market research organisations 204,190 Faster Horses Corporate reputation, campaign and strategy

346,942 Forethought Strategic initiative research

6,885 Halloo Copywriting

104,710 Meltwater Australia Media monitoring

Sub-total 662,727

Direct mail organisations 350,743 Fuji Xerox Business Force Customer invoicing, self-reader cards  
and notifications

Sub-total 350,743

Media advertising organisations 40,250 LinkedIn Singapore Media campaign

13,900 Optimum Media Decisions Media placements

1,357,939 The Brand Agency Media placements

Sub-total 1,412,089

Total expenditure 4,003,896

 
Rounding of amounts
Amounts presented in the directors’ report have been rounded off to the nearest million dollars ($M), unless 
otherwise stated.
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Principles used to determine the nature 
and amount of remuneration 
Western Power’s remuneration policy has been 
formulated to: 

• provide a market competitive remuneration 
framework designed to attract, retain and 
motivate a skilled workforce with the capabilities 
and skills required to effectively achieve Western 
Power’s corporate objectives

•  adopt a commercial approach to the 
management of remuneration, including the 
capacity to pay, provide a clear governance 
framework and address associated risks

•  ensure employees are appropriately 
compensated according to the value of the  
work performed, the services they provide to  
the company and their personal performance

• ensure compliance with all prevailing laws, 
applicable employment instruments and relevant 
enterprise agreements.

Non-executive directors
The Minister for Energy approves the remuneration 
of all directors. The remuneration framework for  
non‐executive directors incorporates both a fixed 
remuneration and superannuation component.

Non‐executive directors do not participate in any 
variable reward or ‘at‐risk’ plan.

No remuneration is paid to any non‐executive 
directors that hold a full‐time office or position that 
is remunerated out of moneys appropriated by 
Parliament.

Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director 
and executives

The remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer/
Managing Director (as relevant) is determined in 
accordance with the Act and the Salaries and 
Allowances Act 1975 (WA).

Mr Guy Chalkley (former Chief Executive Officer)  
was appointed Managing Director in May 2019 
until 4 February 2020. No additional remuneration 
was awarded to the Managing Director for his 
appointment to the Board. No one filled the 
Managing Director position following Mr Chalkley’s 
resignation from this role.

The remuneration of the other executives is set  
by the Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director  
(as relevant) in consultation with the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director 
(as relevant) and other executive’s remuneration 
framework is based upon a total remuneration 
approach that includes base salary, superannuation 
and benefits to reflect the level of work, accountability 
and personal competency in the role.

The Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director  
(as relevant) and executives do not participate in any 
variable reward or ‘at‐risk’ plan.

Total remuneration is reviewed annually on the basis 
of government policy, competitive market movement 
and personal performance. There are no guaranteed 
remuneration increases included in any executive 
contracts.

Directors’ report – remuneration
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Details of remuneration
Non-executive and managing directors

For a list of Western Power’s directors during the reporting year ended 30 June 2021, refer to the ‘Western 
Power’s directors’ section at the front of this directors report.

The remuneration for, and duties and obligations of Western Power’s directors are determined under the Act.

In accordance with Schedule 4, clause 13(c) of the Act, details of the nature and amount of each element of 
remuneration for the directors during the reporting years presented, are below:

Total 
remuneration 
band

Number of 
directors*

Salary  
and fees^

Other long-term 
benefits^

Post-
employment 

superannuation 
benefits^

Termination 
benefits^ Total^

2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20

$’000 # # $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

$01 1 1 - - - - - - - - - -

$1 - $50 3 1 31 28 - - 3 3 - - 34 31

$51 - $100 3 4 60 61 - - 8 5 - - 68 66

$101 - $150 1 1 121 121 - - 11 11 - - 132 132

$751 - $8002 - 1 - 407 - - - 20 - 3303 - 757

* During the 2020/21 and 2019/20 reporting years the composition of the Board changed 

^ Where there is more than one director in a remuneration band the average remuneration is shown

1  Ms Barrie is not remunerated by Western Power being a representative of the Western Australian State Government

2  Mr Chalkley was not remunerated any additional amount for the appointment of Managing Director

3  Mr Chalkley’s termination benefits are for accrued annual and long service leave entitlements, and are subject to taxation deductions required by law
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During the reporting year ended 30 June 2021, the below persons were titled executive officers of Western Power:

Name Position (as at 30 June 2021) 2020/21 2019/20

E Kalajzic Chief Executive Officer (from 08/05/2020) 
(was Chief Financial Officer from Oct-19)

* *

S Barbaro Executive Manager Asset Operations (from 25/05/2020) 
(was General Counsel and Executive Manager Governance and Assurance  
in 2019/20 when not Acting Executive Manager Asset Operations between  
Feb‐20 and mid May‐20)

* *

T Brooker Executive Manager Business and Customer Service * *

M Cheney Chief Technology Officer (from 12/10/2020)

M Chew General Counsel and Executive Manager Governance and Assurance  
(from 10/12/2020)

A Cook Acting General Counsel and Executive Manager Governance and Assurance  
(from Feb‐20 to mid Dec‐20)

J Hall Chief Financial Officer (from 29/06/2020) 
(was acting from Feb‐19 to Sep‐19, and from May‐20 until permanent appointment)

P Kerr Executive Manager Growth

G Landsborough Executive Manager Asset Management (from 22/06/2020) 
(was acting from Sep‐19 until permanent appointment)

*

F Bishop Executive Manager Change and Innovation (until 15/07/2020) 
(In May-20, this position was assessed as no longer required – effective 2020/21)

*

D Fyfe Executive Manager Asset Operations (until 28/08/2020)  
(was Acting Chief Executive Officer between Feb‐20 and May‐20)

*

* Denotes the five highest remunerated executive officers in accordance with Schedule 4, clause 13(c) of the Act. For a complete list of the five 
  highest remunerated executive officers in 2019/20 refer to Western Power’s 2020 Annual Report.

Directors’ report – remuneration (continued)
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Executive officers
The remuneration and other terms of employment for Western Power’s executive officers are formalised in 
ongoing employment agreements. 

In accordance with Schedule 4, clause 13(c) of the Act, details of the five highest remunerated officers  
(being executive officers of Western Power) during the reporting years presented, are below.

Total 
remuneration 
band

Number of 
executive 
officers*

Salary  
and fees^

Non- 
monetary 
benefits^

Other  
long-term 
benefits^

Post-
employment 

superannuation 
benefits^

Termination  
benefits^ Total^

20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20

$’000 # # $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

$301 - $350 - 1 - 321 - - - 9 - 17 - - - 347

$351 - $400 - 2 - 352 - 4 - 9 - 21 - - - 386

$401 - $450 3 - 254 - 6 - 6 - 16 - 1301 - 412 -

$451 - $500 1 1 414 444 10 - 10 10 22 21 - - 456 475

$551 - $600 1 - 528 - - - 12 - 22 - - - 562 -

* The Managing Director’s remuneration is presented in the directors’ remuneration table

^ Where there is more than one executive officer in a remuneration band the average remuneration is shown

1 Termination benefits include accrued annual and long service leave entitlements, and are subject to taxation deductions required by law

For the total remuneration to Western Power’s directors and executive officers (where key management 
personnel) refer to note 26(b) ‘related party transactions’ in the financial statements of this financial report.

Directors’ report – remuneration (continued)
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This directors’ report is authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 24 August 2021.

Signed on: 26 August 2021

Directors’ report – confirmation

G Martin 
Deputy Board Chair

C Beckett AO 
Board Chair
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Corporate governance at Western Power
The Board of Western Power is committed to a high level of corporate governance and fostering a culture 
that values safety, ethical behaviour, integrity, diversity and respect.

Western Power’s corporate governance disclosures are published on the Western Power website at:

westernpower.com.au/about/governance/

Corporate governance disclosures
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Financial statements (continued)
Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2021

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
Profit or loss
Income
 Revenue from rendering of services 4 1,867 1,835
 Other income 4 1 1
Total income 1,868 1,836

Expenses
 Materials and services (242) (212)
 Employee related expenses 5 (217) (233)
 Depreciation and amortisation expense 5 (402) (364)
 Other expenses 5 (215) (203)
Total expenses (1,076) (1,012)

Net finance costs 6 (233) (264)

Profit before income tax equivalent expense 559 560
 Income tax equivalent expense 7 (168) (169)
Profit for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent 391 391

Other comprehensive income or loss
Items that may be re-classified to profit or loss: 24
   Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges 35 (45)
   Re‐classifications of cash flow hedges to profit or loss 11 16
 Tax equivalent on cash flow hedges (14) 9
Items that will not be re-classified to profit or loss: 24
   Re-classifications of cash flow hedges not to profit or loss 1 (1)
   Tax equivalent on cash flow hedges - -
Total other comprehensive income or loss for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent 33 (21)

Total comprehensive income for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent 424 370

The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021

Financial statements (continued)

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
Assets
Current assets
 Cash and cash equivalents 9 50 28
 Trade and other receivables 10 316 258
 Inventories 11 90 83
 Current tax equivalent assets 3 -
Total current assets 459 369

Non-current assets
 Trade and other receivables 10 - 1
 Derivative financial instruments 21 1 -
 Property, plant and equipment 12 11,550 11,212
 Intangible assets 12 191 167
 Right-of-use assets 13 20 25
Total non-current assets 11,762 11,405

Total assets 12,221 11,774

Liabilities
Current liabilities
 Trade and other payables 14 146 178
 Borrowings 19 10 36
 Lease liabilities 20 8 9
 Derivative financial instruments 21 14 15
 Current tax equivalent liabilities - 22
 Provisions 15 97 88
 Deferred income 16 113 137
Total current liabilities 388 485

Non-current liabilities
 Trade and other payables 14 - 1
 Borrowings 19 7,710 7,507
 Lease liabilities 20 12 16
 Derivative financial instruments 21 36 84
 Deferred tax equivalent liabilities 17 1,048 950
 Provisions 15 16 16
 Deferred income 16 64 25
Total non-current liabilities 8,886 8,599

Total liabilities 9,274 9,084

Net assets 2,947 2,690

Equity
 Contributed equity 23 1,688 1,555
 Hedging reserve 24 (86) (119)
 Retained earnings 24 1,345 1,254
Total equity 2,947 2,690

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2021

Financial statements (continued)

Note

Contributed 
equity 

$M

Hedging 
reserve 

$M

Retained 
earnings 

$M

Total 
equity 

$M
At 1 July 2020 1,555 (119) 1,254 2,690

Comprehensive income 24
 Profit, net of tax equivalent - - 391 391
 Other comprehensive income, net of tax equivalent - 33 - 33
Other comprehensive income, net of tax equivalent - 33 391 424

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
 Contributions of equity 23 133 - - 133
 Dividends provided for or paid 25 - - (300) (300)
Total transactions with owners 133 - (300) (167)

At 30 June 2021 1,688 (86) 1,345 2,947

At 1 July 2019 1,522 (98) 943 2,367

Comprehensive income or loss 24
 Profit, net of tax equivalent - - 391 391
 Other comprehensive loss, net of tax equivalent - (21) - (21)
Other comprehensive income or loss, net of tax equivalent - (21) 391 370

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
 Contributions of equity 23 33 - - 33
 Dividends provided for or paid 25 - - (80) (80)
Total transactions with owners 33 - (80) (47)

At 30 June 2020 1,555 (119) 1,254 2,690

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2021

Financial statements (continued)

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
Cash flows from operating activities
 Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods and services tax) 1,810 1,735
 Capital contributions from developers and customers 125 118
 Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of goods and services tax) (646) (590)
 Contributions to tariff equalisation fund (185) (171)
 Other income 1 1
 Income tax equivalents paid (109) (91)
Net cash inflows from operating activities 9 996 1,002

Cash flows from investing activities
 Payments for property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (746) (832)
 Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 11 12
Net cash outflows from investing activities (735) (820)

Cash flows from financing activities
 Proceeds from borrowings 984 1,675
 Repayments of borrowings (809) (1,541)
 Lease principal paid (10) (9)
 Net finance costs paid (237) (264)
 Proceeds from contributed equity 133 33
 Distributions to equity holder (300) (80)
Net cash outflows from financing activities (239) (186)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 22 (4)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the reporting year 28 32

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the reporting year 9 50 28

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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In this section
This section presents the significant accounting policies adopted by Western Power in the preparation of these financial 
statements. Where an accounting policy is specific to one note, the policy is described in the note to which it relates.  
All principal policies have been consistently applied to the reporting years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Section 1: Basis of preparation

1. Reporting entity

 Electricity Networks Corporation trading as Western Power (Western Power) is incorporated under the Electricity   
 Corporations Act 2005 (WA) (Act) and domiciled in Australia. The registered office and principal place of business is  
 363 Wellington Street, Perth, Western Australia 6000.

 Western Power is primarily involved in the building, maintenance and operation of the electricity network throughout  
 the majority of southern Western Australia.  

 These financial statements cover Western Power as an individual entity and were authorised for issue in 
 accordance with a resolution of the directors on 24 August 2021. The directors have the power to amend and   
 reissue the financial report.

2. Basis of accounting

 These financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with 
 Australian accounting standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards 
 Board (AASB) (including Australian interpretations) and Schedule 4 of the Act. On operation of the Act, Schedule 4 
 was aligned and cross referenced to the relevant sections of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

 Western Power has been classified as a not-for-profit entity for the purpose of applying accounting standards, and  
 accordingly applies the not-for-profit elections available in the Australian accounting standards (where applicable).

 (a) New accounting standards and amendments adopted

  Western Power has applied the following amendment for the first time in the reporting year commencing 1 July 2020:

• AASB 2018‐7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Definition of Material (AASB 2018‐7) 
AASB 2018‐7 clarifies the definition of ‘material’ and provides additional guidance – including reference 
that ‘obscuring information’ addresses situations in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating that 
information, and that ‘primary users of general purpose financial statements’ include existing and potential 
investors, lenders and other creditors.

The adoption of AASB 2018‐7 has not resulted in any changes to Western Power’s accounting policies or the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

 (b) New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted

  There are no accounting standards or amendments effective after the 30 June 2021 reporting year that have been  
  identified as potentially having a material impact on Western Power in the reporting year of initial application.

 (c) Accrual accounting and historical cost convention

  These financial statements are prepared:

• on the accrual accounting basis except for cash flow information prepared on the cash accounting basis; and
• in accordance with the historical cost convention except for:

 - derivative financial instruments measured at fair value
 - certain employee benefit liabilities measured at present value, less the fair value of any defined benefit 

plan assets.

Notes to the financial statements

Financial statements (continued)
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Financial statements (continued)
Section 1: Basis of preparation (continued)

2. Basis of accounting (continued)

 (d) Comparatives

  Comparative amounts are for the previous reporting year from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020. 
  Where appropriate, comparative amounts are re‐presented and re‐classified to ensure comparability with the   
  current reporting year. In 2020/21, there has been no re‐statement to comparative amounts.

 (e) Going concern

  These financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis – being Western Power has reasonable   
  grounds to believe it is able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable. This is considering the   
  unused portion of Western Power’s available borrowing facility agreement (refer to note 18(d)(i)) and the forecast   
  net profit and positive operating cash flows in 2021/22.

  In making this assessment, consideration has been given to the potential impact of the COVID‐19 pandemic  
  on Western Power’s operating results. The ongoing indications are the demand for, and receipts from network  
  tariff services, being the most sizable revenue source for Western Power have not been materially impacted –  
  hence there remains no expectation of a significant decline in revenue. 

  In support of this, as at 30 June 2021 there continued to be minimal applications by qualifying market   
  participants for temporary deferral of network access payments under Western Power’s ‘COVID‐19 customer   
  support scheme’ – with all amounts deferred in 2019/20 now paid and no new requests received in 2020/21.

 (f) Working capital

  As at 30 June 2021, Western Power reported a working capital surplus of $71 million (30 June 2020: $116 million   
  deficit). Current liabilities include deferred income relating to developer and customer contributions to the value of   
  $113 million (30 June 2020: $137 million) which usually do not require an outflow of cash resources. When these   
  amounts are excluded, working capital shows current assets exceeding current liabilities by $184 million (30 June  
  2020: $21 million).

 (g) Foreign currency translation

  Presentation and functional currency: 
  These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, being the functional currency of Western Power.  
  All financial information presented in Australian dollars has been rounded off to the nearest million ($M), unless  
  otherwise stated.

  Transactions and balances: 
  Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of Western Power are translated into Australian 
  dollars using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At each reporting date, monetary assets 
  and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at closing exchange rates.

  Non‐monetary items measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the   
  exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non‐monetary items measured in terms of fair value in  
  a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates the fair values were determined.

  All foreign currency translation differences are recognised on a net basis in ‘other expenses’ in profit or loss,   
  except:

• when deferred in equity for translation differences of qualifying cash flow hedges, to the extent the hedge  
is effective

• when the translation differences deferred to equity for qualifying cash flow hedges are transferred to the 
carrying value of non-financial assets.
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Financial statements (continued)
Section 1: Basis of preparation (continued)

2. Basis of accounting (continued)

 (h) Goods and services tax (GST)

  Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, except when the GST   
  incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case, the GST is recognised as part of the cost  
  of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

  Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of  
  GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included in other receivables or payables in the   
  statement of financial position.

  Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing  
  activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flows.

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian accounting standards requires management 
 to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 
 amounts of income, expenses, assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

 Estimates, judgements and underlying assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical 
 experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on Western 
 Power and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
 recognised in the reporting year in which the estimate is revised and any future reporting years affected.

 The areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to the financial statements, or a higher degree of 
 judgement or complexity is involved, are below and described in more detail in the related notes:

Critical accounting estimates and judgements  Note
Unbilled network tariff revenue 4(c) and 10(c)
Impaired trade receivables 10(d) and 18(c)(i)
Impairment of non-financial assets 12(g) and 13(e)
Present value of lease liabilities 13(d) and 20(d)
Present value of employee benefit liabilities 15(c)
Fair values of derivative financial instruments 22(b)
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In this section
This section presents details of Western Power’s profit results and performance by reference to the services rendered 
and operating expenses incurred.

Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented

4. Income

 (a) Accounting policy

  (i) Revenue

   Western Power recognises revenue when the performance obligation to which it relates is satisfied. This is   
   either at the point the service is provided – being when control of the service is transferred to the customer,  
   or over time where control of the service is progressively transferred to the customer. It is measured at the   
   fair value of the consideration received or receivable, being the invoiced amount including interest on   
   overdue amounts, net of the amount of goods and services tax. Revenue also includes an estimate for the   
   value of unbilled network tariff services.

   Network services revenue

   Regulated tariff services

   Western Power primarily receives revenue from the rendering of network tariff services. These services   
   largely relate to the transmission and distribution of electricity and are regulated by the Western Australian   
   Economic Regulation Authority (ERA) via an access arrangement agreement.

   Where Western Power progressively transfers control of these services to the customer – being for on‐going  
   access to the network, the revenue is recognised over time. All other network tariff revenue is recognised   
   when the service is provided to the customer – being at the point the network is used. The consideration   
   invoiced for network tariff services is based on observable stand‐alone prices, being mostly fixed access   
   and usage tariffs approved by the ERA and published in Western Power’s annual price list.

   For network access revenue recognised over time, the output method is used, with revenue measured at   
   the amount Western Power is entitled to invoice the customer. This is because the invoiced amount charged  
   at fixed daily access tariffs, is deemed to correspond directly with the value to the customer of Western   
   Power’s performance obligation completed to date.

   As at each reporting date, network tariff revenue and trade receivables include amounts attributable to   
   ‘unbilled network tariff revenue’. Unbilled network tariff revenue is an estimate of electricity transported to   
   customers not yet invoiced at the reporting date. It comprises read and unread (for periodical readings)   
   metered services, with the latter estimated based on projected revenue consumption at observable  
   stand‐alone prices (fixed tariffs).

   Other services (regulated and unregulated)

   Western Power also receives revenue from the rendering of other network services, including:

• regulated non‐standard access services where the customer is willing to accept different conditions 
to the standard access contract and service standard benchmark. The tariffs for these services are 
negotiated between Western Power and the individual customers but must be set with regard to the 
regulated network tariffs.

• regulated services that can only be offered by Western Power but which are not core to the transmission 
and distribution of electricity. Where these are commonly requested services, the fees and charges are 
set in‐line with a charging criteria and published on Western Power’s web‐site. For other complex or  
non‐standard services, Western Power negotiates commercially with the individual customers.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Financial statements (continued)
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Financial statements (continued)
Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented (continued)

4. Income (continued)

 (a) Accounting policy (continued)

  (i) Revenue (continued) 

  Network services revenue (continued)

  Other services (regulated and unregulated) (continued)

• unregulated services contestable by other suppliers including the sales of materials. The fees and 
charges for these services are in‐line with the methodology disclosed above for ‘other regulated services’.

   The revenue for other network services is recognised when the service is provided to the customer. The   
   consideration invoiced for these services is based on observable stand‐alone prices, being fixed at   
   published or contracted fees and charges.        

   Developer and customer contributions

   Western Power receives developer and customer contributions toward the extension or augmentation of 
   electricity infrastructure to facilitate network connection. Contributions are mostly in the form of cash or   
   gifted network assets. 

   Cash contributions are charged using the methodology included in Western Power’s published    
   ‘contributions policy’ approved by the ERA as part of the access arrangement agreement. They are initially  
   deferred and subsequently recognised as revenue at the point the developers or customers are connected  
   to the network. This is in satisfaction of the performance obligation of the underlying connection contract.

   Gifted network assets are recognised as revenue at the point the assets are energised being in satisfaction 
   of the performance obligation to connect the developer or customer to the network, and are measured at 
   their fair value.

   The network assets resulting from contributions received or gifted are recognised as property, plant and 
   equipment and depreciated over their estimated useful life.

  (ii) Other income

   Western Power receives other income from the provision of services incidental to the core activities of the 
   business. Other income is recognised when the service is provided.



62     |    Western Power Annual Report 2021

Financial statements (continued)
Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented (continued)

4. Income (continued)

 (b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

  (i) Revenue from rendering of services

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
Network services revenue:
 Transmission tariff services 4(c) 424 343
 Distribution tariff services 4(c) 1,157 1,180
 Other services 91 75

1,672 1,598

Developer and customer contributions 195 237
1,867 1,835

  (ii) Other income

2020/21 
$M

2019/20 
$M

Rent 1 1
1 1

 (c) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: unbilled network tariff revenue

  For the year ended 30 June 2021, transmission and distribution network tariff revenue included $192 million for  
  unbilled services (30 June 2020: $150 million). The revenue from these services is measured using a projection  
  model applying complex estimation methodologies and algorithms based on assumptions and inputs such as  
  customer billing profiles, historical and budget data, and seasonal, growth and emerging technology factors.   
  This is consistent with the revenue recognition methodology adopted in previous reporting years (refer to note  
  4(a) for further details).

  Western Power consider it highly probable a significant reversal of this estimate will not be required. This is due  
  to on‐going quantitative and qualitative processes in place to support robust and sound measurement,   
  including regular reasonableness and deviation monitoring, plus periodical independent reviews of the revenue  
  projection model.       

5. Expenses

 (a) Employee related expenses

2020/21 
$M

2019/20 
$M

Wages, salaries and other employee benefits (176) (188)
Termination benefits (3) (2)
Superannuation (38) (43)

(217) (233)

  Refer to note 26(b) for details of total compensation to Western Power’s key management personnel.  

  For the year ended 30 June 2020, employee related expenses included a provisional amount of $18 million  
  for prior years’ unintentional underpayments to current and former employees. These were identified and  
  self‐reported by Western Power to the Fair Work Ombudsman in August 2019, and have been the subject of  
  a comprehensive review.

  All amounts due to current and former employees for the prior years’ unintentional underpayments were paid  
  in the 2020/21 reporting period.  
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Financial statements (continued)
Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented (continued)    

5. Expenses (continued)

 (b) Depreciation and amortisation expense

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
Depreciation expense – property, plant and equipment:
 Buildings (6) (5)
 Plant and equipment (361) (334)
 Capitalised depreciation 5(b)(i) 16 21

(351) (318)

Amortisation expense – intangible assets:
 Computer software (37) (33)
 Intellectual property (4) (4)

(41) (37)

Depreciation expense – right-of-use assets:
 Fleet (8) (8)
 Other equipment (2) (1)

(10) (9)

(402) (364)

  Refer to notes 12(a)(ii), 12(b)(ii) and 13(a)(ii) for details of the depreciation and amortisation methods and 
  estimated useful lives applied.

  (i) Capitalised depreciation

   Capitalised depreciation represents charges for fleet assets used in the course of construction.

 (c) Other expenses

  (i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
Tariff equalisation contribution 29(b) (185) (171)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (14) (15)
Insurance (12) (9)
Impairment of trade receivables 18(c)(i) (3) (1)
Lease costs 5(c)(ii) - (1)
Other (1) (6)

(215) (203)

Refer to note 27 for details on the remuneration of auditors.

  (ii) Accounting policy: lease costs

   The below expenses are recognised as ‘lease costs’ in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period 
   of the lease:

• expenses relating to short-term leases
• expenses relating to leases of low-value assets
• other expenses not captured as lease liabilities under AASB 16 Leases – including variable and 

termination lease payments.
   Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value leases are for assets 
   individually valued at less than $5,000.
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Financial statements (continued)
Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented (continued)    

6. Net finance costs

 (a) Accounting policy

  Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested.

  Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings. Finance costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
  construction or production of qualifying assets (being assets that necessarily take a substantial period of 
  time to be ready for their intended use) are capitalised to form part of the cost of that asset. All other finance 
  costs are expensed in the reporting years in which they are incurred. ‘Net finance costs paid’ in the statement 
  of cash flows is prior to the effect of capitalisation.

 (b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
Finance income:
 Interest - -

Finance costs:
 Domestic currency loans not at fair value through profit or loss (194) (230)
 Fair value loss on cash flow hedges (11) (16)
 Interest rate swaps (30) (21)
 Finance lease interest (1) (1)
 Capitalised finance costs 6(b)(i) 3 4

(233) (264)

Net finance costs (233) (264)

  (i) Capitalised financed costs

  For the year ended 30 June 2021, the weighted average interest rate used to capitalise finance costs was  
  3.1 per cent (30 June 2020: 3.6 per cent).          
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Financial statements (continued)
Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented (continued)

7. Income tax equivalent expense

 (a) Accounting policy

  National taxation equivalent regime 
  Western Power operates under the National Taxation Equivalent Regime (NTER). While income tax equivalent  
  payments under this scheme are remitted to the Western Australian State Government, Western Power’s tax   
  equivalent is subject to Australian Taxation Office (ATO) administration. The calculation of the liability in respect  
  of these taxes is governed by the Income Tax Administration Acts and the NTER guidelines as agreed by the   
  State Government.

  Income tax equivalent expense 
  The income tax equivalent expense for a reporting year comprises current and deferred tax equivalents, being  
  it is calculated on income assessable and expenses deductible for tax – irrespective of when the assessment  
  or deduction arises. It includes adjustments for permanent and temporary differences, with: 

•  permanent differences recognised for transactions not included in taxable income or loss – although   
recognised in the financial reporting profit or loss 

•  temporary differences recognised for transactions included in taxable income or loss – but at a different 
point in time to recognition in the financial reporting profit or loss. 

  Income tax equivalent expense is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognised  
  in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the tax equivalent expense too is recognised  
  in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

  Current tax equivalent 
  Current tax equivalent is the expected tax equivalent payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss  
  for the reporting year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted as at the reporting date, and any   
  adjustment to the tax equivalent in respect of previous years.

  Deferred tax equivalent 
  Deferred tax equivalent is provided using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the  
  carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation   
  purposes. Deferred tax equivalent is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied when the   
  asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted  
  as at the reporting date.

  A deferred tax equivalent asset is recognised only to the extent it is probable future taxable profits will be   
  available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax equivalent assets are reviewed at the end of   
  each reporting year and are reduced to the extent it is no longer probable the related tax equivalent benefit   
  will be realised. Unrecognised deferred tax equivalent assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are   
  recognised to the extent it has become probable future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax equivalent   
  asset to be recovered. 

  Deferred tax equivalent assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset  
  current tax equivalent assets and liabilities, and when the deferred tax equivalent balances relate to the same   
  taxation authority.
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Financial statements (continued)
Section 2: Profit for the reporting years presented (continued)

7. Income tax equivalent expense (continued)

 (b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

2020/21 2019/20

Current 
$M

Deferred 
$M

Total 
$M

Current 
$M

Deferred 
$M

Total 
$M

Income tax equivalent expense (84) (84) (168) (98) (69) (167)

Adjustment for income tax equivalent of previous years - - - (1) (1) (2)
(84) (84) (168) (99) (70) (169)

  As at 30 June 2021, Western Power’s current tax equivalent was $84 million (30 June 2020: $98 million).

2020/21 
$M

2019/20 
$M

Income tax equivalent expense is attributable to:

 Profit for the reporting year (168) (169)

Current tax equivalents included in income tax equivalent expense (84) (99)
Deferred tax equivalents included in income tax equivalent expense comprises:
 Movement in deferred tax equivalent assets (note 17) 4 2
 Movement in deferred tax equivalent liabilities (note 17) (88) (72)

(168) (169)

 (c) Reconciliation of profit to income tax equivalent expense

2020/21 
$M

2019/20 
$M

Profit before income tax equivalent expense 559 560

Income tax equivalent expense at the Australian tax rate of 30 per cent (30 June 2020: 30 per cent) (168) (168)
Income tax equivalent effect of:
 Other allowable deductions 2 3
 Net non deductible expenses and accessible income (1) (1)
 Net research and development expenses and incentives (1) (1)
Current income tax equivalent expense (168) (167)
Adjustment for current tax equivalent of previous years - (1)
Adjustment for deferred tax equivalent of previous years - (1)
Total income tax equivalent expense (168) (169)

 (d) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

2020/21 
$M

2019/20 
$M

Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges (11) 14
Re-classifications of cash flow hedges to profit or loss (3) (5)
Re-classifications of cash flow hedges not to profit or loss - -

(14) 9
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Financial statements (continued)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

In this section
This section identifies the assets used to generate Western Power’s operating profit and the liabilities incurred as a 
result. (Refer to section 4 for the liabilities relating to Western Power’s financing activities).

Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities

8. Financial assets and financial liabilities

 Western Power classifies and subsequently measures all financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost   
 with the exception of derivative financial instruments, measured at fair value.

 Financial assets are classified and measured at amortised cost when the following conditions are met:

• the financial asset is held with the objective to collect contractual cash flows; and

• the contractual terms of the financial asset gives rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 The carrying amount of Western Power’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at the reporting dates presented, 
 are below. These financial instruments are held to support the operations of the business.

2020/21 2019/20

Note
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 50 - 50 28 - 28
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments) 10 304 - 304 247 1 248
Derivative financial instruments (used for hedging) 21 - 1 1 - - -
Total financial assets 354 1 355 275 1 276

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables: 14 146 - 146 178 1 179
 Trade payables and accruals 95 - 95 137 - 137
 Other payables 49 - 49 37 - 37
 Contributory extension scheme 2 - 2 4 1 5
Borrowings: 19 10 7,710 7,720 36 7,507 7,543
 Domestic working capital facility 10 - 10 36 - 36
 Domestic currency loans - 7,661 7,661 - 7,455 7,455
 Accrued interest - 49 49 - 52 52
Lease liabilities 20 8 12 20 9 16 25

Derivative financial instruments (used for hedging) 21 14 36 50 15 84 99
Total financial liabilities 178 7,758 7,936 238 7,608 7,846

 Details on the accounting policies for the recognition, measurement and impairment of the above financial assets 
 and financial liabilities are set out in the relevant notes indicated above. The fair values of Western Power’s financial 
 assets and financial liabilities are indicated overleaf.
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Financial statements (continued)
Section 3: Operational assets and liabilities (continued)

8. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

 (a) Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

  Other than below, the fair values of Western Power’s financial assets and financial liabilities are assumed to   
  approximate the above carrying amounts. The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid  
  to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  

2020/21 2019/20

Note

Carrying 
amount 

$M

Fair 
value 

$M

Carrying 
amount 

$M

Fair 
value 

$M
Contributory extension scheme (current financial liabilities) 14 2 2 4 4
Contributory extension scheme (non-current financial liabilities) 14 - - 1 1
Domestic currency loans (non-current financial liabilities) 19 7,661 7,971 7,455 7,877

  (i) Trade and other receivables and payables

   The fair value of receivables and payables with a remaining life of less than one year is deemed to be the 
   notional amount due to their short-term nature. The fair value of all other receivables and payables is 
   estimated at the present value of future cash flows – discounted using the current market rates of interest 
   available for similar receivables and payables, unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial.

  (ii) Derivative financial instruments

   The fair value of derivative financial instruments in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the 
   end of the reporting year. For derivatives not traded in active markets the valuation techniques in note 22(b) 
   are used. These techniques result in fair values classified as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy (as defined in 
   note 22(a)) because either the inputs are based on observable market data or the valuation is independently 
   calculated by the provider of the instrument.

  (iii) Contributory extension scheme

   The fair value of the contributory extension scheme is calculated by discounting the expected future 
   payments using the Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC) zero coupon rates whose terms most 
   closely match the terms of the related payables. The average coupon rate used for discounting at 30 June 
   2021 was 0.1 per cent (30 June 2020: 0.3 per cent). The fair value is classified as level 2 in the fair value 
   hierarchy (as defined in note 22(a)) because the inputs are based on observable market data. 

  (iv) Lease liabilities

   The fair value of lease liabilities is measured at the present value of outstanding payments – discounted using   
   the interest rates implicit in the leases, or where the rates are not readily determined, at incremental borrowing   
   rates provided by the WATC, being the provider of Western Power’s borrowings.

  (v) Domestic currency loans  

   The fair value of domestic currency loans is calculated by discounting the expected future principal and interest  
   cash flows using the interest rates below. This is except for loans linked to the consumer price index (CPI),   
   which are independently fair valued by the WATC, the provider of these instruments.

2020/21 2019/20
WATC yield curve 0.2% - 2.9% 0.2% - 2.6%
Bank bill swap (BBSW) reference rate 0.1% 0.1%
Australian dollar (AUD) interest rate swap curve 0.1% - 1.6% 0.2% - 0.8%

   The fair value of domestic currency loans is classified as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy (as defined in note 
   22(a)) because either the inputs are based on observable market data or the valuation is independently   
   calculated by the provider of the borrowings.
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8. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

 (b) Recognised fair value measurements

  Refer to note 22 for details of the assets and liabilities recognised and measured at fair value in the financial 
  statements as at the reporting dates presented.

9. Cash and cash equivalents

 (a) Accounting policy

  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, deposits held at call with financial institutions and other   
  short‐term deposits that have an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to known  
  amounts of cash. As at 30 June 2021, Western Power did not have any short‐term deposits (30 June 2020: nil).

  For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and deposits as   
  defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. As at 30 June 2021, Western Power did not have a bank   
  overdraft (30 June 2020: nil).

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

Current
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
Cash at bank 50 28

50 28

  Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

 (c) Reconciliation of profit to net cash inflows from operating activities

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
Profit for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent 391 391
Non-cash items:
 Depreciation and amortisation expense 5(b) 402 364
 Written down value on disposal of property, plant and equipment 25 27
 Non-cash capital contributions 9(d) (50) (48)
Items classified as investing and financing activities:
 Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment (11) (12)
 Net finance costs 6 233 264
Movements in operating assets and liabilities:
 Movement in trade and other receivables (57) (6)
 Movement in inventories (7) 3
 Movement in trade and other payables (16) 22
 Movement in provisions 12 6
 Movement in deferred income 15 (87)
 Movement in tax equivalent liabilities 59 78
Net cash inflows from operating activities 996 1,002

 (d) Non-cash investing and financing activities

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
Gifted network assets 12(f)(i) 50 48
Additions to right-of-use assets 5 12
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9. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

 (e) Changes in borrowing liabilities arising from financing activities

  Movements in borrowings during the reporting years presented, are below:

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
At 1 July 7,543 7,364
Cash movements:
 Proceeds from borrowings 984 1,675
 Repayments of borrowings (809) (1,541)
Non-cash movements 9(e)(i) 2 45
At 30 June 7,720 7,543

  (i) Non-cash movements

   Non‐cash movements include borrowing accretions paid on maturity, the fair value of cash flow hedges  
   re‐classified to profit or loss over the terms of the borrowings and movements in accrued interest.  

10. Trade and other receivables

 (a) Accounting policy

  Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value, being the value of the invoice sent to the   
  customer, and subsequently measured at amortised cost less an allowance for impairment. Trade receivables  
  also include an estimate for the value of unbilled network tariff revenue.

  Trade and other receivables are classified as current assets unless collection is not expected for more than  
  12 months after the reporting date. Where payments are due after one year, they are measured at their net   
  present value to reflect the economic cost of the delayed payment.

  Impairment 
  An impairment allowance is recognised for the expected credit losses (ECLs) on trade receivables. ECLs are   
  based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all cash  
  flows expected to be received – discounted at the original effective interest rate, unless the effect of    
  discounting would be immaterial.

  Western Power applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs, that is, an impairment allowance is   
  recognised for credit losses expected to result from all possible default events over the lifetime of the trade   
  receivable. This is estimated using a provision matrix based on Western Power’s historical credit loss    
  experience, adjusted for forward‐looking factors specific to the receivables and economic environment.

  Amounts impaired are recognised in profit or loss. They are generally written off when there is no expectation   
  of recovery. Indicators of this include failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan and/or if past due for  
  a significant period. Any subsequent recoveries of amounts written off are credited to profit or loss.
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10. Trade and other receivables (continued)

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

  Trade receivables represent amounts due from customers for services provided or goods sold in the ordinary  
  course of business. They are usually settled on 14 or 30 day payment terms, unless contractually agreed   
  otherwise. Other receivables generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of  
  the business.

2020/21 2019/20

Note
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Trade receivables 10(c) 298 - 298 246 - 246
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables 10(d) (5) - (5) (3) - (3)

293 - 293 243 - 243
Prepayments 12 - 12 11 - 11
Other receivables 11 - 11 4 1 5

316 - 316 258 1 259

 (c) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: unbilled trade receivables

  As at 30 June 2021, trade receivables included unbilled network tariff revenue of $192 million (30 June 2020:   
  $150 million). Refer to note 4(c) for further details on the estimation of this amount.

 (d) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: impaired trade receivables

  The allowance for impairment of trade receivables is based on assumptions about risk of default and expected  
  loss rates. Western Power uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the   
  impairment calculation, based on past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates  
  at the end of each reporting date. 

  Refer to notes 18(c)(i) and 18(c)(ii) respectively for details of the trade receivables ‘impaired’ and ‘past due but   
  not impaired’ as at the reporting dates presented, including key assumptions and inputs.   

11. Inventories

 (a) Accounting policy

  Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the   
  weighted average cost principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring inventories and bringing them  
  to their existing location and condition. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on   
  qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of inventories. 

  Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated   
  completion and selling costs.

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

  Inventories consist of materials required for the maintenance and operation of the network, as well as for 
  general construction works.

Current
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
Raw materials and stores 90 83

90 83
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11. Inventories (continued)

 (c) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

  Inventories expensed to profit or loss during the year ended 30 June 2021 were $35 million (30 June 2020: 
  $26 million). 

  As at 30 June 2021, the write down of inventory to net realisable value was nil (30 June 2020: $2 million).  
  This expense is recognised in ‘materials and services’ in profit or loss. 

12. Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

 (a) Accounting policy: property, plant and equipment

  (i) Cost 
   Property, plant and equipment represents the capital works and plant required for the operation of the   
   business, and is recognised at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated   
   impairment losses. Historical cost is determined as the fair value of the asset at the date of acquisition or   
   construction, and includes all expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset.  
   Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign  
   currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

   The cost of self‐constructed assets includes the cost of materials and labour, and any other costs, directly   
   attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. Gifted network assets are   
   recognised at fair value at the point the assets are energised.

   Subsequent costs are included in property, plant and equipment only when it is probable the item    
   associated with the cost will generate future economic benefits and the cost can be measured reliably.  
   The carrying amounts of items replaced are derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance, plus  
   minor capital assets less than $5,000, are expensed to profit or loss in the reporting years in which they  
   are incurred.

  (ii) Depreciation 
   In order to recognise the loss of service potential of property, plant and equipment, depreciation is 
   calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives below, making allowances where 
   appropriate for residual values.

Category of property, plant and equipment    Estimated useful life (years)
Substations, transformers, poles and cables 45 - 50
Buildings 40
Land improvements and infrastructure 25
Meters, streetlights 20 - 25
Distributed energy resources (stand-alone power systems and battery storage) 10 - 25
Pole reinforcements, advance meters 15
Furniture and fittings, refurbishments, other plant and equipment 10
Communications 7 - 10
Fleet 5 - 10
Computer hardware 4
Leasehold improvements lease life

Property, plant and equipment received on disaggregation of Western Power Corporation is depreciated 
over the estimated residual useful lives. No depreciation is provided on freehold land, easements and assets 
in the course of construction.

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation methods of property, plant and equipment 
are reviewed annually, and adjusted as appropriate at the end of each reporting year, with any changes 
recognised as a change in accounting estimate. As at 30 June 2021, Western Power did not recognise any 
changes in depreciation estimates (30 June 2020: nil).
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12. Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (continued)

 (a) Accounting policy: property, plant and equipment (continued) 

  (iii) Rehabilitation costs 
   Upon recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, the cost of the item includes the present 
   value of the anticipated costs of rehabilitating the site on which it is located.   

  (iv)Derecognition 
   An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
   benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains and losses arising from the 
   derecognition of an asset are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised 
   in profit or loss.

 (b) Accounting policy: intangible assets

  (i)  Cost 
   Intangible assets represent identifiable capitalised software costs and intellectual property, and are   
   recognised at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.   
   Subsequent costs are included in intangible assets only when it is probable the item associated with   
   the cost will generate future economic benefits and the cost can be measured reliably. 

   Internally generated intangible assets are recognised only if an asset is created that can be identified;  
   it is probable the asset created will generate future economic benefits; and the development cost of the   
   asset can be measured reliably. Where no internally generated asset can be recognised the development   
   expenditure is expensed to profit or loss.

  (ii) Amortisation 
   In order to recognise the loss of service potential of intangible assets, amortisation is calculated using  
   the straight‐line method over the estimated useful lives below, making allowances where appropriate for   
   residual values.        

Category of intangible assets     Estimated useful life (years)
Intellectual property 3 - 25
Software (major developments/enhancements) 5 - 10
Software (minor purchases/enhancements) 2.5

   Intangible assets received on disaggregation of Western Power Corporation are amortised over their 

   estimated residual useful lives.

   The residual values, estimated useful lives and amortisation methods of intangible assets are reviewed   
   annually, and adjusted as appropriate at the end of each reporting year, with any changes recognised   
   as a change in accounting estimate. As at 30 June 2021, Western Power did not recognise any changes  
   in amortisation estimates (30 June 2020: nil).

  (iii) Derecognition 
   An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected  
   to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains and losses arising from the derecognition of an asset   
   are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in profit or loss.
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 (c) Impairment of non-financial assets

  At each reporting date, Western Power considers any indicators of impairment to non‐financial assets,  
  that is, events or changes in circumstances that indicate the carrying value may not be fully recoverable.  
  An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable  
  amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of an asset’s or groups of assets (being cash generating units  
  (CGU)) value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual   
  asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets  
  or groups of assets. 

  As a not‐for‐profit entity, Western Power determines value in use using the current replacement cost of the  
  asset when the future economic benefits of the asset are not primarily dependent on the asset’s ability to  
  generate net cash inflows and where Western Power would, if deprived of the asset, replace its remaining   
  future economic benefits.

  Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss and, where material, are disclosed separately. Any    
  impairment losses recognised in previous years are assessed at the end of each reporting date for any  
  indications the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been  
  a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only  
  to the extent the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been   
  determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

 (d) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

Freehold 
land 
$M

Buildings 
$M

Plant and 
equipment 

$M

Works  
under 

construction 
$M

Total  
property, plant 
and equipment 

$M

Computer 
software 

$M

Intellectual 
property 

$M

Total 
intangible 

assets 
$M

Cost 122 229 14,191 547 15,089 522 32 554
Accumulated 
depreciation and 
amortisation - (69) (3,470) - (3,539) (340) (23) (363)
Carrying amount 
at 30 June 2021 122 160 10,721 547 11,550 182 9 191

Cost 123 203 13,463 605 14,394 465 24 489
Accumulated 
depreciation and 
amortisation - (64) (3,118) - (3,182) (303) (19) (322)
Carrying amount 
at 30 June 2020 123 139 10,345 605 11,212 162 5 167

 (e) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
Depreciation expense – property, plant and equipment (excluding capitalised depreciation) 5(b) (367) (339)
Amortisation expense – intangible assets 5(b) (41) (37)

  Refer to notes 12(a)(ii) and 12(b)(ii) respectively for details of the depreciation and amortisation methods and 
  estimated useful lives applied. 
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12. Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (continued)

 (f) Movements in each class of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets during the reporting 

  years presented, are below:          

Freehold 
land 
$M

Buildings 
$M

Plant and 
equipment 

$M

Works  
under 

construction 
$M

Total  
property, 
plant and 

equipment 
$M

Computer 
software 

$M

Intellectual 
property 

$M

Total 
intangible 

assets 
$M

Carrying amount at 
1 July 2020 123 139 10,345 605 11,212 162 5 167
Cost:
 Additions (note 12(f)(i)) - - 4 798 802 - - -
 Transfers to inventory - - - (7) (7) - - -
 Transfers in/(out) 1 28 755 (849) (65) 57 8 65
 Disposals (2) (2) (31) - (35) - - -
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation:
 Transfers in/(out) - 1 (1) - - - - -
 Disposals - - 10 - 10 - - -
 Depreciation and 
 amortisation 
 (note 12(e)) - (6) (361) - (367) (37) (4) (41)
Carrying amount at 
30 June 2021 122 160 10,721 547 11,550 182 9 191

Carrying amount at 
1 July 2019 98 139 10,059 462 10,758 136 3 139
Cost:
 Additions (note 12(f)(i)) - - 2 888 890 - - -
 Transfers to inventory - - - (5) (5) - - -
 Transfers in/(out) 27 5 644 (740) (64) 58 6 64
 Disposals (2) - (39) - (41) - - -
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation:
 Transfers in/(out) - - (1) - (1) 1 - 1
 Disposals - - 14 - 14 - - -
 Depreciation and 
 amortisation 
 (note 12(e)) - (5) (334) - (339) (33) (4) (37)
Carrying amount at 
30 June 2020 123 139 10,345 605 11,212 162 5 167

  (i) Additions to works under construction

   Contributed assets 
   Western Power recognises non-cash capital contributions in the form of gifted network assets in 
   accordance with the accounting policy in note 4(a). For the year ended 30 June 2021, the fair value of gifted 
   network assets included in additions was $50 million (30 June 2020: $48 million).     

   Capitalised finance costs 
   Western Power capitalises finance costs in accordance with the accounting policy in note 6(a). For the year 
   ended 30 June 2021, additions included finance costs of $3 million attributable to assets in the course of 
   construction (30 June 2020: $4 million).

 (g) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: impairment of non-financial assets (including right-of-use assets)

  Western Power assesses the impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use 
  assets at least annually in accordance with the accounting policy in note 12(c). This involves evaluating 
  impairment indicators specific to Western Power and the particular asset or CGU that may differ from actual 
  results including for market values; changes in technological, economic, legal and/or climate change-related   
  environments; obsolescence or physical damage.

  There were no indicators of impairment to property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use 
  assets as at 30 June 2021 (30 June 2020: no indicators).
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13. Right-of-use assets

 (a) Accounting policy

  (i) Cost

   Right-of-use assets represent leased fleet and other equipment (including properties and information 
   technology) required for the operation of the business. They are recognised at historical cost less 
   accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, adjusted for lease liability  
   re-measurements. Historical cost is measured at the amount of the initial lease liability plus any:

• lease payments made at, or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
• initial direct costs
• restoration costs including dismantling and removing the underlying asset.

 
  (ii) Depreciation

   In order to recognise the loss of service potential, right-of-use assets are generally depreciated on a  
   straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s estimated useful life and the lease term.

   Where Western Power is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is 
   depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

  (iii) Impairment

   Refer to note 12(c) for details of Western Power’s ‘Impairment of non-financial assets’ accounting policy. 

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

Fleet 
$M

Other 
$M

Total right-of-use 
assets 

$M
Cost 28 10 38
Accumulated depreciation (15) (3) (18)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2021 13 7 20

Cost 25 9 34
Accumulated depreciation (8) (1) (9)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2020 17 8 25

 (c) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
Depreciation 5(b) (10) (9)

Refer to note 13(a)(ii) for details of the depreciation method and estimated useful lives applied.  

 (d) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: present value of lease liabilities

  The historical cost of a right-of-use asset is largely determined by the initial measurement of the lease liability. 
  Refer to note 20(d) for further details on the estimation of this measurement, being the present value of lease 
  liabilities.

 (e) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: impairment of non-financial assets

  Refer to note 12(g) for details of Western Power’s critical accounting estimates and judgements used to assess  
  the impairment of right‐of‐use assets.
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14. Trade and other payables

 (a) Accounting policy
  Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. 
  Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities unless payment is not due for at least 12 months 
  after the reporting date.

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position
Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to Western Power prior to the 
end of the reporting year which are unpaid. They are usually settled within 20 days of recognition in-line with 
the Western Australian State Government’s updated 2020/21 payment policy introduced in response to the 
COVID-19 pandemic (30 June 2020: between 30 and 45 days of recognition).

2020/21 2019/20

Note
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Trade payables and accruals 95 - 95 137 - 137
Other payables 49 - 49 37 - 37
Contributory extension scheme 14(b)(i) 2 - 2 4 1 5

146 - 146 178 1 179

  (i) Contributory extension scheme

   Contributory extension scheme payables represent contributions received from customers to extend 
   specific electricity supplies. These non-interest bearing deposits are refunded at the end of the contribution 
   period unless other customers connect to the extensions. By 2023, when the scheme finishes, all scheme 
   members will have had their contributions refunded.

15. Provisions

 (a) Accounting policy
  Provisions are recognised when Western Power has either a present legal or constructive obligation as a result  
  of past events; it is probable an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable   
  estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the present value of  
  management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation as at the reporting  
  date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects the market assessments of the time value  
  of money and the risks specific to the liability. Any movement in the provision due to the unwinding of the   
  discount rate – being for the passage of time, is recognised as a finance cost.  

  (i) Employee benefits 
   Provisions for the below employee benefit liabilities are recognised as a result of services rendered up to 
   the reporting date.           

   Wages and salaries 
   Liabilities arising in respect of employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of   
   the reporting date are measured at their nominal amount based on remuneration rates that are expected to   
   be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability for wages and salaries is recognised in ‘trade payables   
   and accruals’. The liability for all other short‐term employee benefits is recognised in the provision for   
   employee benefits – other.

   Annual and long service leave 
   The liabilities arising in respect of annual and long service leave are not expected to be settled wholly within  
   12 months of the reporting date. They are recognised in the provision for employee benefits, and measured  
   at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees  
   up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to factors including  
   the expected future wages and salaries levels including related on‐costs, experience of employee    
   departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using the Commonwealth   
   bond rates whose terms most closely match the terms of the related liabilities. 
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15. Provisions (continued)

 (a) Accounting policy (continued)
  (i) Employee benefits (continued)

   Annual and long service leave (continued) 
   Independent actuarial valuations are carried out at each reporting date. Remeasurements as a result of   
   experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

   Leave obligations are presented as current liabilities in the statement of financial position where there is no   
   unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of when   
   actual settlement is expected to occur.         

   Retirement benefit obligations 
   All employees of Western Power are entitled to benefits upon retirement, disability or death from any number 
   of superannuation plans, which may include a defined contribution section, a defined benefit section,  
   or both. The liabilities for retirement benefit obligations are recognised in the provision for employee  
   benefits – other.

Defined contribution plans 
A defined contribution plan is a post‐employment benefit plan under which Western Power pays fixed 
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further 
amounts. Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense in the reporting years 
in which the services are rendered by employees.

Defined benefit plans 
A defined benefit plan is a post‐employment benefit other than a defined contribution plan. A liability 
or asset in respect of defined benefit superannuation plans is recognised in the statement of financial 
position, and is measured separately for each plan at the present value of the defined benefit obligation in 
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date, less the fair value of any plan assets 
at that date.

The present value of defined benefit superannuation plans is based upon expected future payments and is 
calculated using discounted cash flows consistent with the projected unit credit method. Consideration  is 
given to factors including the expected future wages and salaries level, experience of employee departures  
and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using the Commonwealth bond rates   
whose terms most closely match the terms of the related liabilities. An independent actuarial valuation  
is carried out at each reporting date.

The annual net defined benefit interest expense and/or income is determined by applying the discount rate  
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the reporting year to the net defined   
benefit liability and/or asset. It is recognised immediately along with all other defined benefit plan expenses  
including past services costs, in ‘employee related expenses’ in profit or loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial  
assumptions (including changes in the bond rate) are recognised in the reporting years in which they 
occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in ‘retained earnings’ in the statements 
of changes in equity and financial position.

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations resulting from plan amendments or 
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service costs. 

  (ii) Rehabilitation costs

   A provision for site rehabilitation costs is recognised when there is either a legal or constructive obligation  
   to rehabilitate a site as a result of a past event; it is probable a rehabilitation expense will be incurred to settle 
   the obligation; and the obligation costs can be reliably estimated.

   The amount of the provision for future rehabilitation costs is capitalised into the cost of the related property,  
   plant and equipment, and depreciated over the estimated useful life. Any subsequent changes in the   
   estimated future costs, useful lives and/or the discount rates are added to or deducted from the cost of the  
   related property, plant and equipment.

   Rehabilitation costs that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations, but that do not have  
   a future economic benefit are expensed to profit or loss.
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15. Provisions (continued)

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

2020/21 2019/20

Note
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Employee benefits:
 Annual leave 15(e) 43 - 43 37 - 37
 Long service leave 15(e) 52 11 63 47 10 57
 Other 1 - 1 - - -

96 11 107 84 10 94

Rehabilitation costs 1 3 4 4 4 8
Environmental costs 15(b)(i) - 2 2 - 2 2

97 16 113 88 16 104

  (i) Environmental costs

   Environmental provisions relate to estimated costs on essential safety expenditure.

 (c) Critical accounting estimates and judgments: present value of employee benefits

  The present value of employee benefits, including annual and long service leave and retirement benefit 
  obligations, is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various 
  assumptions that may differ from actual results including the discount rate, future wages and salaries levels   
  including related on-costs, employee departures and settlement dates.

  All actuarial assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date with any remeasurement gains or losses 
  recognised in accordance with the accounting policy in note 15(a). 

 (d) Movements in provisions      

  Movements in each class of provision during the reporting year presented, other than employee benefits, are below:

    
Rehabilitation costs 

$M
Environmental costs 

$M
At 1 July 2020 8 2
Charged in the reporting year (3) -
Reversed in the reporting year (1) -
At 30 June 2021 4 2
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15. Provisions (continued)

 (e) Amounts not expected to be settled within the next 12 months

  The annual and long service leave benefits reported as current because Western Power does not have an 
  unconditional right to defer settlement, but that based on past experience are not expected to be taken or paid 
  within the next 12 months of the reporting dates presented, are below:     

2020/21 
$M

2019/20 
$M

Current annual leave:
 Annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months 27 24
 Annual leave expected to be settled after 12 months 16 13

43 37
Current long service leave:
 Long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months 10 10
 Long service leave expected to be settled after 12 months 42 37

52 47

16. Deferred income    

 (a) Accounting policy

  Contributions received in advance are deferred and subsequently recognised as revenue at the point the 
  developers or customers are connected to the network. This is in satisfaction of the performance obligation of 
  the underlying connection contract.

  Contributions are classified as current liabilities unless connection to the network is not due for at least 
  12 months after the reporting date.  

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

  Deferred income largely relates to contributions received in advance from developers and customers.

2020/21 2019/20

Current 
$M

Non-current 
$M

Total 
$M

Current 
$M

Non-current 
$M

Total 
$M

Deferred income 113 64 177 137 25 162

 (c) Movements in deferred income

  Movements in deferred income during the reporting years presented, are below:

2020/21 
$M

2019/20 
$M

At 1 July 162 249
Received in the reporting year 141 128
Earned in the reporting year (126) (215)
At 30 June 177 162
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17. Deferred tax equivalent liabilities  

 (a) Accounting policy

  Refer to note 7(a) for details of Western Power’s ‘deferred tax equivalent’ accounting policy.

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

  The temporary differences attributable to deferred tax equivalent assets and liabilities as at the reporting dates  
  presented, are below:

2020/21 2019/20

Non-current

Deferred 
tax asset 

$M

Deferred 
tax 

liability 
$M

Net 
(liability 

less 
asset) 

$M

Deferred 
tax asset 

$M

Deferred 
tax 

liability 
$M

Net 
(liability 

less 
asset) 

$M
Property, plant and equipment (PPE), and  
intangible assets - 1,122 1,122 - 1,034 1,034
Derivative financial instruments 37 - (37) 51 - (51)
Provisions for employee benefits 32 - (32) 28 - (28)
Other temporary differences 5 - (5) 5 - (5)
Total deferred tax equivalent 74 1,122 1,048 84 1,034 950

Set-off deferred tax equivalent assets pursuant  
to set-off provisions (74) (74) - (84) (84) -
Net deferred tax equivalent - 1,048 1,048 - 950 950

Net deferred tax equivalent:
 Expected to be realised within 12 months 36 - (36) 33 - (33)
 Expected to be realised after more than 12 months 38 1,122 1,084 51 1,034 983

74 1,122 1,048 84 1,034 950
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17. Deferred tax equivalent liabilities (continued)

 (c) Movements in deferred tax equivalent assets

  Movements in deferred tax equivalent assets during the reporting years presented, are below:

Derivative financial 
instruments 

$M

Provisions for 
employee benefits 

$M

Other temporary 
differences 

$M

Deferred tax 
equivalent assets 

$M
At 1 July 2020 51 28 5 84
Charged to profit or loss - 4 - 4
Charged to other comprehensive income (14) - - (14)
At 30 June 2021 37 32 5 74

At 1 July 2019 42 26 5 73
Charged to profit or loss - 2 - 2
Charged to other comprehensive income 9 - - 9
At 30 June 2020 51 28 5 84

 (d) Movements in deferred tax equivalent liabilities

  Movements in deferred tax equivalent liabilities during the reporting years presented, are below:

PPE, and intangible assets 
$M

Deferred tax equivalent 
liabilities 

$M
At 1 July 2020 1,034 1,034
Charged to profit or loss 88 88
Adjustment to income tax equivalent provided in previous years - -
At 30 June 2021 1,122 1,122

At 1 July 2019 962 962
Charged to profit or loss 71 71
Adjustment to income tax equivalent provided in previous years 1 1
At 30 June 2020 1,034 1,034
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In this section
This section presents the liabilities relating to Western Power’s financing activities, as well as the key financial risks and 
equity of the business.

Section 4: Debt and equity

18. Financial risk management

 (a) Overview

  The Western Power Board has overall responsibility for financial risk management. To assist in the performance of  
  this responsibility, the Board has established an Audit and Risk sub-Committee (ARC).

  The ARC is supported in its oversight role by the Treasury Management Committee (TMC) and the Internal   
  Audit area. The TMC, comprising senior business experts, considers all financial risk management policies and   
  activities. The specialist Internal Audit area undertakes regular and ad-hoc reviews of financial risk management 
  controls and procedures.

  The Western Power financial management policy sets the principles and framework for governing financial 
  risks arising from business operations. Adherence to this policy ensures that at all times, Western Power 
  maintains an appropriate level of control over financial and associated risks that accords with strategic objectives 
  and legal responsibilities.  

  The principal financial risks arising from Western Power’s current operations as described in this note are 
  summarised below:           

Risk Note Arises from: Measured by: Managed by:
Market risk
Interest rate risk 18(b)(i) • Borrowing obligations • Sensitivity analysis • Interest rate swaps

• Forward borrowing commitments
Foreign currency risk 18(b)(ii) • Commercial transactions • Sensitivity analysis • Forward exchange contracts
Credit risk 18(c) • Cash and cash equivalents

• Trade and other receivables 
(excluding prepayments)

• Derivative financial instruments

• Carrying and fair 
 value amounts

• Ageing analysis

• Credit ratings

• Counterparty limits

• Exposure monitoring

• Bank guarantees, insurance 
bonds or cash deposits

• Legal collection of debts
Liquidity risk 18(d) • Trade and other payables

• Borrowings

• Lease liabilities

• Derivative financial instruments

• Contractural maturities • Available cash and borrowing facilities

• Debt maturity profiles
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18. Financial risk management (continued)

 (b) Market risk

  Market risk is the risk to Western Power the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
  because of changes in market prices. Western Power has exposures to movements in interest and foreign 
  exchange rates.

  (i) Interest rate risk

   Interest rate risk is the risk to Western Power the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
   will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate risk in Western Power arises from 
   borrowing obligations with floating rates.

   Western Power has an interest rate risk management strategy which aims to manage exposures to interest 
   rate movements. Debt portfolio structure guidelines are set to manage the interest rate risks arising from 
   Western Power’s commercial and regulatory environment. Interest rate exposure mix guidelines are set to 
   ensure that Western Power is not exposed to excess risk from interest rate volatility.

   Interest rate forecasts are continuously monitored and, where appropriate, exposures to interest rates are 
   managed through the use of Board approved hedging instruments such as interest rate swaps and forward 
   domestic borrowing commitments. The critical terms of these hedging instruments must align with the 
   hedged items.

   Effects of hedge accounting on financial position and performance 
   The effects of interest rate swaps and forward domestic borrowing commitments on the financial position 
   and performance for the reporting dates presented, are below:

Note

Interest rate swaps
Forward domestic 

borrowing commitments

2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20
Carrying amount (liability) ($M) 21 50 84 - 15
Quantitiy (#) 44 36 - 14
Notional amount ($M) 1,525 1,125 - 650
Maturity dates May-22 

to Jul-28
May-22 

to Jul-28
- Jul-20

Hedge ratio 21(b)(ii) 1:1 1:1 - 1:1
Change in fair value of outstanding hedging instruments ($M) 35 (15) - (15)
Change in value of hedged item used to determine hedge 
effectiveness ($M)

(35) 15 - 15
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18. Financial risk management (continued)

 (b) Market risk (continued)

  (ii) Foreign currency risk

   Foreign currency risk is the risk to Western Power the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
   will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk in Western Power arises   
   from commercial transactions denominated in foreign currency, principally for the purchase of inventories   
   and capital equipment from foreign suppliers.

   Western Power’s foreign currency risk management strategy aims to manage significant exposures through 
   the use of Board approved hedging instruments, such as forward exchange contracts that provide certainty 
   on costs. The critical terms of these hedging instruments must align with the hedged items.

   Western Power’s managed foreign currency risk as at the reporting dates presented, is below.

2020/21 2019/20

Canadian 
Dollar

Chinese 
Yuan Euro

United 
States 
Dollar

Canadian 
Dollar

Chinese 
Yuan Euro

United 
States 
Dollar

Weighted average foreign exchange rate - 5.1271 0.5813 0.7627 0.8968 - 0.5829 0.6767
Forward exchange contract maturing ($’000):
 within one year - 18,923 2,244 12,827 5,065 - 1,058 4,004

 later than one year but not later than  
five years - - - 17,000 - - 1,283 -

   For the year ended 30 June 2021, the effect of forward exchange contracts on Western Power’s    
   financial position and performance was not material (30 June 2020: not material). Refer to notes 21 and   
   24 for more details.
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 (b) Market risk (continued)
  (iii) Sensitivity analysis

   The below table summarises the potential impact to the annual post-tax profit and other comprehensive 
   income of Western Power as at the reporting dates presented, due to movements in interest and foreign 
   exchange rates. The assumptions used are based on management’s best estimate of a reasonably possible 
   movement given current market conditions.

Carrying 
amount

Interest rate risk Foreign currency risk
Impact on 

post-tax profit 
+/-1%

Impact on other 
comprehensive 
income +/-1%

Impact on 
post-tax profit 

+/-10%

Impact on other 
comprehensive 
income +/-10%

$M $M $M $M $M $M $M $M $M
At 30 June 2021
Cash and cash 
equivalents 50 - - - - - - - -

Trade and other receivables 304 - - - - - - - -
Derivatives-interest  
rate swaps2 - - - 4 (4) - - - -

Derivatives-FX contracts 1 - - - - - - (3) 3
Total financial assets 355 - - 4 (4) - - (3) 3

Trade and other payables 146 - - - - - - - -
Borrowings1 7,720 (11) 11 - - - - - -
Lease liabilities 20 - - - - - - - -
Derivatives-interest rate 
swaps2 50 - - 28 (29) - - - -

Derivatives-FX contracts - - - - - - - - -
Derivatives-forward 
borrowings3 - - - - - - - - -

Total financial liabilities 7,936 (11) 11 28 (29) - - - -

At 30 June 2020
Cash and cash 
equivalents 28 - - - - - - - -

Trade and other 
receivables 248 - - - - - - - -

Derivatives-interest  
rate swaps2 - - - - - - - - -

Derivatives-FX contracts - - - - - - - - -
Total financial assets 276 - - - - - - - -

Trade and other payables 179 - - - - - - - -
Borrowings1 7,543 (15) 15 - - - - - -
Lease liabilities 25 - - - - - - - -
Derivatives-interest  
rate swaps2 84 - - 39 (41) - - - -

Derivatives-FX contracts - - - - - - - (1) 1
Derivatives-forward 
borrowings3 15 - - 62 (62) - - - -

Total financial liabilities 7,846 (15) 15 101 (103) - - (1) 1

   As at 30 June 2021, the sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk is based on Western Power’s:

  1 floating rate borrowings of $2,598 million (30 June 2020: $2,598 million) and variable rate working capital  
   borrowings of $10 million (30 June 2020: $36 million). The majority of Western Power’s borrowings are at  
   fixed interest rates as allowable under the Board approved treasury management standard.

  2 44 interest rate swap agreements (30 June 2020: 36) at a notional amount of $1,525 million (30 June   
   2020: $1,125 million). These agreements are entered into to hedge against floating interest rate exposures  
   arising from borrowing obligations.

  3 nil fixed rate forward domestic borrowing commitments (30 June 2020: 14 at a notional amount of $650   
   million). These commitments are entered into to mitigate refinancing risk and to hedge against floating   
   interest rate exposures arising from future borrowing obligations. They are recognised as derivative   
   financial instruments in the reporting years between entering into the forward domestic borrowing   
   agreements and draw downs of the loan principal.



Western Power Annual Report 2021    |    87

Financial statements (continued)
Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)

18. Financial risk management (continued)

 (c) Credit risk

  Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to Western Power if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument   
  fails to discharge its contractual obligation. The maximum exposure to credit risk for Western Power is best 
  represented by the carrying amounts of financial assets recognised in the statement of financial position as at  
  the reporting dates (refer to note 8).

  Western Power generally provides credit on 14 or 30 day payment terms, unless contractually agreed   
  otherwise. Credit risk is actively managed through the adherence of Western Power’s credit risk and treasury 
  management standards, the use of credit ratings and monthly reporting to the Board. Western Power manages 
  the quality of financial assets and its concentrations of credit risk by reference to external credit ratings, where  
  available, or to historic information on counterparty default rates. Bank guarantees, insurance bonds or cash 
  deposits are also obtained as security where necessary.

  (i) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: impaired trade receivables

   Western Power applies the simplified approach to measure expected credit losses on trade receivables. 
   This approach recognises a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables, being:

• a loss allowance from day one
• an estimate for forward-looking losses to reflect current conditions and forecasts of future conditions.

   To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables are grouped into six main customer categories 
   based on shared credit risk characteristics. The expected credit loss rates are based on the payment 
   profiles of trade receivables over a period of six years before the reporting dates presented, and the 
   corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period.

   The historical credit loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on 
   macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of customers to settle the trade receivables. Western Power has 
   identified the Western Australian ‘gross state product’ to be the most relevant macroeconomic factor, and 
   accordingly adjusts the historical credit loss rates based on the expected changes in this factor.

   For the year ended 30 June 2021, changes in this factor reflected estimates for the ongoing impact of,   
   and subsequent recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic on current and future economic conditions.  
   This did not result in a material change to Western Power’s allowance for impairment of trade receivables   
   (30 June 2020: not material).

   The loss allowance for the impairment of trade receivables for the reporting years presented, is below.  
   This allowance is recognised in ‘other expenses’ in profit or loss (refer to note 5(c)(i)).

Current
30 

days late
60 

days late
90 

days late

More than 
90 days 

late Total
At 30 June 2021
Expected loss rate 1.1% - - - 44.4%
Gross carrying amount – trade receivables ($M) 89 6 1 1 9 106
Impairment of trade receivables 1 - - - 4 5

 

Current
30 

days late
60 

days late
90 

days late

More than 
90 days 

late Total
At 30 June 2020
Expected loss rate 1.2% - - - 28.6%
Gross carrying amount – trade receivables ($M) 85 3 2 1 7 98
Impairment of trade receivables 1 - - - 2 3
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18. Financial risk management (continued)

 (c) Credit risk (continued)

  (i) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: impaired trade receivables (continued)

   Movements in the allowance for impairment of trade receivables during the reporting years presented, are below:

2020/21 
$M

2019/20 
$M

At 1 July 3 3
Allowed for in the reporting year 3 1
Previously allowed for and written off in the reporting year (1) (1)
At 30 June 5 3

    There is no collateral security in place in respect of these amounts.

  (ii) Trade receivables past due but not impaired

   The ageing analysis of trade receivables past due but not impaired as at the reporting dates presented, is below:

2020/21 
$M

2019/20 
$M

between 1 and 59 days 7 5
between 60 and 89 days 1 1
more than 90 days 5 5

13 11

 (d) Liquidity risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk Western Power will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial 
  liabilities as they fall due. Western Power is governed by the treasury management standard which requires 
  active management of cash and ensures adequate facilities are in place to satisfy ongoing funding 
  requirements. This includes actively managing working capital for immediate needs, and the debt portfolio 
  within maturity guidelines to mitigate refinancing risk.

  (i) Financing arrangements

   Western Power has in place a borrowing facility with the WATC. Included in this, is a working capital facility  
   that can be drawn down to meet short-term financing needs. The facility’s borrowing limit is set through the  
   annual Western Australian State Budget or as amended from time to time by a formal process, including the  
   mid‐year State Budget review or via a letter of amendment.

   The maximum amount of borrowings permitted by Western Power for the reporting year ended 30 June   
   2021 was $7,824 million (30 June 2020: $7,614 million). This is per the 2020/21 Western Australian  
   pre‐election State financial projections handed down in February 2021 (30 June 2020: per the 2019/20   
   Western Australian mid‐year State Budget review handed down in December 2019).

   The unused portion of Western Power’s borrowing facility for the reporting years presented, is below:

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
Borrowing limit 7,824 7,614
Used portion of borrowing limit:
 Domestic working capital facility 19 (10) (36)
 Domestic currency loans 19 (7,661) (7,455)
Total used portion of borrowing limit (7,671) (7,491)

Unused portion of borrowing limit 153 123

   The maximum amount of borrowings permitted for Western Power for the reporting year ended 30 June   
   2022 remains subject to approval in the 2021/22 Western Australian State Budget due to be handed down  
   in September 2021.
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18. Financial risk management (continued)

 (d) Liquidity risk (continued)

  (ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

   The below table presents the maturity profile of Western Power’s financial liabilities as at the reporting dates 
   presented, based on contractual undiscounted cash flows, including estimated interest payments and cash 
   flows associated with derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges.   

Note

Within one 
year 
$M

Between 
one and five 

years 
$M

Later than 
five years 

$M

Total 
contractual 
cash flows 

(undiscounted) 
$M

Carrying 
amount 

$M
At 30 June 2021
Interest rate swaps: 21
   Net settled 30 25 (1) 54 50
Forward exchange contracts: 21
   (Inflow) (24) (23) - (47)
   Outflow 24 22 - 46 (1)
Forward domestic borrowing 
commitments1 21 - - - - -
Total derivative financial liabilities 30 24 (1) 53 49

Trade and other payables: 14 146 - - 146 146
   Trade payables and accruals 95 - - 95 95
   Other payables 49 - - 49 49
   Contributory extension scheme 2 - - 2 2
Borrowings: 19 1,044 4,016 4,358 9,418 7,720
   Domestic working capital facility 10 - - 10 10
   Domestic currency loans 1,030 3,873 3,874 8,777 7,710
   Forward domestic borrowing 
   commitments1 4 143 484 631 -
   Lease liabilities 20 8 10 2 20 20
Total non-derivatives financial liabilities 1,198 4,026 4,360 9,584 7,886

At 30 June 2020
Interest rate swaps: 21
   Net settled 29 56 4 89 84
Forward exchange contracts: 21
   (Inflow) (13) (2) - (15)
   Outflow 13 2 - 15 -
Forward domestic borrowing 
commitments1 21 - - - - 15
Total derivative financial liabilities 29 56 4 89 99

Trade and other payables: 14 177 1 - 178 179
   Trade payables and accruals 137 - - 137 137
   Other payables 37 - - 37 37
   Contributory extension scheme 3 1 - 4 5
Borrowings: 19 1,095 3,765 4,659 9,519 7,543
   Domestic working capital facility 36 - - 36 36
   Domestic currency loans 1,047 3,575 3,983 8,605 7,507
   Forward domestic borrowing 
   commitments1 12 190 676 878 -
Lease liabilities 20 10 14 3 27 25
Total non-derivatives financial liabilities 1,282 3,780 4,662 9,724 7,747

  1 There are no contractual cash flows for forward domestic borrowing commitments in the period between 
   entering into the forward domestic borrowing agreement and draw down of the loan principal. The 
   contractual cash flows after draw down of the agreed loan principal are presented in the ‘borrowings’ 
   section of this table.

  Borrowing facilities are in Australian dollars. Funds may be drawn down subject to the borrowings facility 
  and master lending agreement with the WATC at varying maturities. As at 30 June 2021, the average 
  maturity was 4.9 years (30 June 2020: 5.0 years).
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19. Borrowings

 (a) Accounting policy

  Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently 
  measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

  Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless Western Power has an agreement with the lender 
  that allows refinancing of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. This includes where  
  a forward domestic borrowing commitment exists that replaces the existing borrowing on the date of 
  maturity, and where this extends the maturity of the original borrowing to greater than 12 months after  
  the reporting date.

  Forward domestic borrowing commitments 
  Forward domestic borrowing commitments are entered into with the WATC to borrow specified amounts  
  in the future at pre-determined interest rates. They are recognised as derivative financial instruments in the   
  period between entering into the forward domestic borrowing agreement and draw down of the loan principal.  
  Once the loan is drawn down, the principal is accounted for at fair value like any other borrowing. Any fair value  
  gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the forward is recognised in the hedging reserve and re-classified  
  to profit or loss over the term of the loan.         

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

2020/21 2019/20

Note
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Domestic working capital facility 10 - 10 36 - 36
Domestic currency loans 19(c) - 7,661 7,661 - 7,455 7,455
Accrued interest - 49 49 - 52 52

10 7,710 7,720 36 7,507 7,543

  Western Power’s domestic borrowings are all provided by the WATC, an entity owned by the Western 
  Australian State Government.          

 (c) Classification of borrowings

  As at 30 June 2021, the non-current domestic currency loans of $7,661 million (30 June 2020: $7,455 million) 
  included an amount of $836 million that will become due and payable during the 2021/22 reporting year  
  (30 June 2020: $850 million that became due and payable during the 2020/21 reporting year). It is Western 
  Power’s expectation and discretion that this amount will be refinanced under the master lending agreement 
  with the WATC rather than repaid, and therefore has been classified as non-current. This is supported by:

• a master lending agreement with the WATC that allows Western Power to refinance all or any part of 
maturing debt at regular intervals; and

• the expected approval of Western Power’s forecast borrowing requirements for the next four years, 
including no repayment of amounts classified as non‐current above, in the 2021/22 Western Australian  
State Budget due to be handed down in September 2021.
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20. Lease liabilities

 (a) Accounting policy

  Western Power leases fleet and other equipment (including properties and information technology) required 
  for the operation of the business. The lease contracts are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a 
  wide range of different terms and conditions. Where the contracts contain both lease and associated non- 
  lease components, Western Power elects not to separate and instead accounts for as single lease components.

  At the commencement of a lease, the lease liability is measured at the present value of outstanding payments. 
  These payments include:

• fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivables 
• variable lease payments based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the 

lease commencement date
• amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees
• payments under extension options if it is reasonably certain the extension will be exercised
• the exercise price of a purchase option if it is reasonably certain the option will be exercised
• payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects exercising that option.   

        
  Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. Where this rate is not readily 
  determined an incremental borrowing rate is used. Western Power’s incremental borrowing rate is provided by 
  the WATC, being the provider of Western Power’s borrowings.

  Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit or  
  loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
  liability for each period.

  Variable lease payments 
  Variable lease payments can be exposed to potential future increases based on an index or rate. Any increases 
  are not included in the lease liability until they take effect, at which point they are adjusted against the right-of- 
  use asset.

  Extension and termination options 
  Leases can include extension and termination options. This is to maximise operational and asset management  
  flexibility. Periods covered by these options are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain  
  to be extended or not terminated.

  Short-term and low-value leases 
  Refer to note 5(c)(ii) for details of Western Power’s ‘short term and low-value leases’ accounting policy.  
          



92     |    Western Power Annual Report 2021

Financial statements (continued)
Section 4: Debt and equity (continued)

20. Lease liabilities (continued)

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

2020/21 2019/20

Current 
$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Lease liabilities 8 12 20 9 16 25

 (c) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
Finance lease interest 6(b) (1) (1)

Lease costs: 5(c)
  Expenses relating to short-term leases - (1)
Total lease costs - (1)

For the year ended 30 June 2021, the total cash outflow for leases was $11 million (30 June 2020: $11 million).

 (d) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: present value of lease liabilities 

  Western Power measures lease liabilities on a present value basis in accordance with the accounting policy  
  in note 20(a). This involves estimation and judgements associated with identifying leases within contracts, 
  lease versus non-lease components including stand-alone prices, lease terms, variable versus fixed lease   
  payments, discount rates and degree of certainty around exercising extensions and/or terminations options. 

21. Derivative financial instruments

 (a) Accounting policy

  (i) Derivative financial instruments

   Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is 
   entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value as at each reporting date. The valuation 
   techniques used to measure fair value are further described in note 22(b).

   Derivative financial instruments are presented as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when 
   the fair value is negative.

  (ii) Hedge accounting

   For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

• Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or 
liability, or a firm commitment

• Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a 
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction.

   At inception of the hedge relationship, Western Power documents the economic relationship between 
   hedging instruments and hedged items including whether changes in the cash flows of the hedging 
   instruments are expected to offset changes in the cash flows of hedged items. Western Power documents 
   the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge transactions.  
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21. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

 (a) Accounting policy (continued)

  (ii) Hedge accounting (continued) 
   Fair value hedges 
   For all derivative transactions designated as a fair value hedge, the portion of gain or loss on the hedging   
   instrument is recognised in profit or loss, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or  
   liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. There is no impact in other comprehensive income or the   
   hedging reserve. 

   During the year ended 30 June 2021, Western Power had not accounted for any derivative financial   
   instruments that qualified for hedge accounting as fair value hedges (30 June 2020: nil).

   Cash flow hedges 
   For all derivative transactions designated as a cash flow hedge, the portion of gain or loss on the hedging   
   instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income   
   and accumulated in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

   When the cash flows occur, the amount that has been deferred to equity is re‐classified in the same   
   reporting year as the hedged item affects the profit or loss, that is:

• where the hedged item subsequently results in the recognition of a non‐financial asset (such as 
inventories or property, plant and equipment), the amount deferred to equity for the effective portion  
of a forward exchange contract is transferred to the carrying value of the asset. Where there is no 
recognition of a non‐financial asset, the effective portion is re‐classified to profit or loss in the same 
reporting year as the hedged item affects the profit or loss.

• the amount deferred to equity for the effective portion of an interest rate swap or forward domestic 
borrowing commitment hedging a floating rate borrowing is recognised in ‘finance costs’ in profit or loss, 
in the same reporting year as the interest expense on the hedged loan.

   When a hedging instrument expires, is sold or is terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria 
   for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity, and is   
   recognised when the forecast transaction occurs. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected   
   to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately re‐classified to profit or loss.

  (iii) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

   For all derivative transactions that do not qualify for hedge accounting, any changes in fair value are 
   recognised immediately in profit or loss. During the year ended 30 June 2021, all Western Power’s derivative 
   transactions qualified for hedge accounting (30 June 2020: all qualified).

  (iv)Derecognition

   Derivative financial instruments are derecognised when Western Power no longer controls the contractual 
   rights that comprise the financial instrument. 

   During the year ended 30 June 2021, Western Power did not derecognise any derivative financial    
   instruments (30 June 2020: nil derecognised). 
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21. Derivative financial instruments (continued)  

 (b) Amounts recognised in statement of financial position

2020/21 2019/20

Note
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Current 

$M

Non-
current 

$M
Total 

$M
Assets 21(b)(i)
Forward exchange contracts - 1 1 - - -

- 1 1 - - -
Liabilities 21(b)(i)
Interest rate swaps 14 36 50 - 84 84
Forward domestic borrowing commitments - - - 15 - 15

14 36 50 15 84 99

  (i) Nature of derivatives

   Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge economic exposures to movements in interest and   
   foreign exchange rates. 

   Western Power uses derivative financial instruments in accordance with Board approved policy. Under this  
   policy the critical terms of the hedging instruments must align with the hedged items. Speculative trading  
   where a derivative is entered into without an underlying economic exposure is strictly prohibited. All   
   derivative activities are carried out by a specialist group within Western Power that has the appropriate skills,  
   experience and supervision.

   As at the reporting dates presented, Western Power used the below derivative financial instruments.  
   All qualified for hedge accounting in accordance with the accounting policy in note 21(a). This is further   
   explained in note 21(b)(ii).          

Instrument Economic exposure hedged

Interest rate swaps Western Power enters into interest rate swaps in order to hedge against floating 
interest rate exposures arising from borrowing obligations.  

Forward exchange contracts Western Power enters into forward exchange contracts in order to hedge against 
foreign currency risk, principally arising from the future purchase of inventories 
and capital equipment in foreign currencies.   

Forward domestic borrowing commitments Western Power enters into forward domestic borrowing commitments in order to 
mitigate refinancing risk and to hedge against interest rate exposures arising from 
future borrowing obligations with floating rates.

  (ii) Hedge ineffectiveness

   Hedge ineffectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic 
   prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure an economic relationship exists between the hedged item 
   and hedging instrument. Hedge ineffectiveness can occur due to:

• changes in the forecast timing of the cash flow transaction
• differences in the critical terms between the hedging instrument and the hedged item
• changes in the credit risk of Australia or the derivative counterparty.

   Interest rate swaps and forward domestic borrowing commitments 
   Western Power enters into interest rate swaps and forward domestic borrowing commitments that have the 
   same critical terms as the hedged item, including the notional amount, interest rates, payment dates and 
   maturities. Western Power does not hedge all borrowings, therefore the hedged item is identified as a 
   proportion of the outstanding borrowings up to the notional amount of the hedging instrument.

   Forward exchange contracts 
   Western Power enters into forward exchange contracts that have the same critical terms as the hedged 
   item, including the transaction amount, foreign exchange rates and payment dates.

   During the year ended 30 June 2021, Western Power assessed no hedge ineffectiveness (30 June 2020:  
   no hedge ineffectiveness). This is because all critical terms matched, ensuring the economic relationships 
   existed between the hedged items and hedging instruments.
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22. Recognised fair value measurements        

 (a) Fair value hierarchy

  The assets and liabilities of Western Power that are measured and recognised at fair value as at the reporting 
  dates presented, are below, and disclosed by the following fair value hierarchy levels:

  Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

  Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
    either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).     

  Level 3: Inputs from the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

2020/21 2019/20
Level 1 

$M
Level 2 

$M
Level 3 

$M
Total 

$M
Level 1 

$M
Level 2 

$M
Level 3 

$M
Total 

$M
Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments - 1 - 1 - - - -
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments - 50 - 50 - 99 - 99

It is Western Power’s policy to recognise transfers into and out of the fair value hierarchy levels at the end of 
each reporting year. 

As at 30 June 2021, there were no transfers between levels for recurring fair value measurements (30 June 
2020: no transfers). 

 (b) Critical accounting estimates and judgements: valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values 

  Recurring fair value measurements 
  The fair value of derivatives in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting 
  year. Where derivatives are entered into that are not traded in active markets the fair value is determined using 
  valuation techniques. These techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available 
  and rely as little as possible on specific estimates. In some instances, independent valuations from the provider 
  of the instrument are used.

  If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are based on observable market data, or the   
  valuation is independently calculated by the provider of the instrument, the instrument is included in level 2.   
  If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data the instrument is included  
  in level 3.

  During the year ended 30 June 2021, level 3 valuation techniques were not used (30 June 2020: not used).

  Specific valuation techniques used to value derivative financial instruments (where relevant) include the following:

• The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated at the present value of the estimated future cash flows 
based on a combination of observable BBSW reference rates and AUD interest rate swap curves.

• The fair value of forward exchange contracts is determined using a combination of observable forward 
foreign exchange rates, BBSW reference rates and AUD interest rate swap curves as at the reporting date.

• The fair value of forward domestic borrowing commitments is independently calculated by the WATC, the 
provider of these instruments.           

 
 All of the resulting fair value estimates are included in level 2. For the potential impact to Western Power’s 
 annual post-tax profit and other comprehensive income due to movements in the key observable inputs being 
 interest and foreign exchange rates, refer to the sensitivity analysis in note 18(b)(iii).     
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23. Contributed equity

 (a) Accounting policy

  Contributions made by the owner are recognised as a direct adjustment to equity when received.

 (b) Nature of contributions 

  Contributed equity represents the initial and subsequent contributions made by Western Power’s sole owner, 
  the Western Australian State Government. No shares have been allotted.

  The owner’s initial contribution comprised the assets of Western Power Corporation, after deducting liabilities, 
  transferred to Western Power on 1 April 2006. The owner has made subsequent contributions including to the 
  edge of grid and regional power investment programs, to offset dividends paid on capital contributions, for the 
  sale of land surplus to requirements and for the recovery of income tax equivalent expense on residential 
  capital contributions.           

 (c) Movements in contributed equity

  Movements in contributed equity during the reporting years presented, are below:

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
At 1 July 1,555 1,522
Contributions received to offset: 23(c)(i)
  Final dividend 54 33
  Interim dividend 79 -
Total contributions received 133 33

At 30 June 1,688 1,555

  (i) Contributed equity

   During the reporting years presented, the State Government made contributions to offset dividends paid 
   by Western Power on capital contributions, for the sale of land surplus to requirements and for the recovery  
   of income tax equivalent expense on residential capital contributions.

24. Hedging reserve and retained earnings

 (a) Accounting policy

  The hedging reserve represents the effective portion of the cumulative net changes in the fair value of derivative 
  financial instruments that are designated, and qualify as cash flow hedges in accordance with the accounting 
  policy in note 21(a). Amounts are re-classified to profit or loss when the associated hedge transaction affects 
  profit or loss.
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24. Hedging reserve and retained earnings (continued)

 (b) Movements in hedging reserve

  Movements in the hedging reserve during the reporting years presented, are below:

Note

Interest 
rate 

swaps 
$M

Forward 
exchange 
contracts 

$M

Forward 
domestic 

borrowing 
commitments 

$M
Total 

$M
At 1 July 2020 (57) (1) (61) (119)
Other comprehensive income or loss for the reporting year:
   Fair value of cash flow hedges:
   Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges 35 - - 35
   Re-classifications of cash flow hedges to profit or loss 6(b) - - 11 11
   Re-classifications of cash flow hedges not to profit or loss - 1 - 1
   Total fair value of cash flow hedges 35 1 11 47

   Tax equivalent on fair value of cash flow hedges: 7(d)
   Tax equivalent on changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges (11) - - (11)
   Tax equivalent on re-classifications of cash flow hedges to profit 
   or loss - - (3) (3)

   Tax equivalent on re-classifications of cash flow hedges not 
   to profit or loss - - - -

   Total tax equivalent on fair value of cash flow hedges (11) - (3) (14)

Total other comprehensive income for the reporting year 24 1 8 33

At 30 June 2021 (33) - (53) (86)

At 1 July 2019 (47) - (51) (98)
Other comprehensive income or loss for the reporting year:
   Fair value of cash flow hedges:
   Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges (15) - (30) (45)
   Re-classifications of cash flow hedges to profit or loss 6(b) - - 16 16
   Re-classifications of cash flow hedges not to profit or loss - (1) - (1)
   Total fair value of cash flow hedges (15) (1) (14) (30)

   Tax equivalent on fair value of cash flow hedges: 7(d)
   Tax equivalent on changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges 5 - 9 14
   Tax equivalent on re-classifications of cash flow hedges to profit 
   or loss - - (5) (5)

Tax equivalent on re-classifications of cash flow hedges not 
to profit or loss - - - -

   Total tax equivalent on fair value of cash flow hedges 5 - 4 9

Total other comprehensive loss for the reporting year (10) (1) (10) (21)
At 30 June 2020 (57) (1) (61) (119)

 (c) Movements in retained earnings

  Movements in retained earnings during the reporting years presented, are below:

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
At 1 July 1,254 943
Profit for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent 391 391
Dividends provided for or paid 25 (300) (80)
At 30 June 1,345 1,254
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25. Dividends

 (a) Accounting policy

  Dividends are provided for in the reporting year in which the dividends recommended by the Board are   
  accepted by the Minister for Energy – with the concurrence of the Treasurer of Western Australia.  
  A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity. 

  Dividends are subject to a solvency test in line with the Act.

 (b) Dividends recognised in the reporting years

  During the reporting years presented, the below dividends were declared and paid to the Western Australian 
  State Government:

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
Final dividend (77) (74)
Special dividend 25(b)(i) (7) (6)
Interim dividend (216) -

(300) (80)

  (i) Special dividend

   During the year ended 30 June 2021, Western Power paid the State Government a special dividend of  
   $7 million for the sale of land surplus to requirements (30 June 2020: $3 million plus an additional $3 million  
   for the costs of delivering the State Government’s Energy Transformation Strategy).

 (c) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting year

  Pursuant to section 126 of the Act, and in line with written notice from the Minister for Energy, the directors   
  have recommended a nil dividend for the financial year ended 30 June 2021.
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In this section
This section presents other information that must be disclosed in compliance with Australian accounting 
standards and other AASB pronouncements, but that are not immediately related to individual line items in 
the financial statements.

Section 5: Other information

26. Related party transactions

 (a) Owner      

  Although Western Power operates as a corporatised enterprise under the Act, it is accountable to and 
  controlled by the Western Australian State Government, via the Minister for Energy, as Western Power’s sole 
  owner and shareholder.

  Related parties of Western Power include: 

• All Cabinet Ministers of the Western Australian State Government (Cabinet Ministers) and their close family 
members, and entities controlled or jointly controlled by them  

• All Western Power directors and executive officers (unless employed for a limited period during the reporting 
year – generally three months or less) and their close family members, and entities controlled or jointly 
controlled by them           

• Other Western Australian statutory authorities and departments, including their related bodies, that are 
included in the State’s whole of government consolidated financial statements    

• Associates and joint ventures of any entities that are included in the State’s whole of government 
consolidated financial statements

• The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB).

 (b) Key management personnel compensation      

  Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing  
  and controlling the activities of an entity, either directly or indirectly. 

  Western Power’s key management personnel has been determined to be the State’s Cabinet Ministers, and   
  the directors and executive officers of Western Power. 

  Total compensation to Western Power’s key management personnel (excluding State Cabinet Ministers), for the 
  reporting years presented, is below: 

2020/21 
$’000

2019/20 
$’000

Short-term employee benefits 3,458 3,457
Post-employment superannuation benefits 222 216
Long-term benefits 70 66
Termination benefits 662 345

4,412 4,084

  For more detailed Western Power remuneration disclosures refer to the ‘remuneration’ section of the directors’  
  report within this financial report.

  Total compensation to the State’s Cabinet Ministers is not disclosed because there is no obligation for Western  
  Power to reimburse this amount. Details however, can be found in the ‘2020/21 annual report on state   
  finances’ published on the Western Australian Department of Treasury’s website.
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26. Related party transactions (continued)

 (c) Transactions with related parties
  (i) Key management personnel

   Western Power’s key management personnel and their related parties, conduct transactions with Western   
   Power within normal employee and customer relationships. The terms and conditions are no different   
   to those it is reasonable to expect Western Power would adopt if dealing with the Cabinet Minister, director,  
   executive officer and/or their related party in an arm’s length transaction in similar circumstances.

   Western Power is not aware of material related party transactions with the State’s Cabinet Ministers,  
   the directors and executive officers of Western Power and/or their close family members or entities   
   controlled or jointly controlled by them.

  (ii) Government-related entities

   During the reporting years presented, Western Power engaged in the below transactions, being significant 
   in terms of size (total annual transaction was generally in excess of $20 million), with other public sector   
   entities controlled by the Western Australian State Government:

Note
2020/21 

$M
2019/20 

$M
Receipts
Synergy:
   Transmission and distribution network tariff revenue 1,176 1,153
Western Australian Treasury Corporation:
   Proceeds from borrowings 984 1,675
Department of Treasury:
   Proceeds from contributed equity 23 133 33
Public Transport Authority:
   Capital contributions 38 9

Payments
Western Australian Treasury Corporation:
   Repayments of borrowings (809) (1,541)
   Net finance costs paid (207) (245)
Department of Treasury:
   Contributions to tariff equalisation fund 29(b) (185) (171)
   Income tax equivalent paid (109) (91)
   Distributions to equity holder 25 (300) (80)
Department of Finance:
   Payroll tax (25) (24)

Outstanding receivables (current)
Synergy:
   Network tariff receivables 211 184
Department of Finance:
   Tax equivalent assets
  Current 3 -

Outstanding payables (current and non-current)
Department of Finance:
   Tax equivalent liabilities
  Current - (22)
  Deferred 17 (1,048) (950)
Western Australian Treasury Corporation:
   Borrowings (including accrued interest) (7,715) (7,538)
   Forward domestic borrowing commitments 21 - (15)

Future commitments
Department of Treasury:
   Tariff equalisation contribution 29(b) (756) (709)
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27. Remuneration of auditors

 (a) Audit services 
  Under the Act, the Auditor General for Western Australia has been appointed Western Power’s independent 
  auditor. The indicative audit fee for the services provided by the Office of the Auditor General for the reporting  
  years presented, are below:           

2020/21 
$’000

2019/20 
$’000

Annual audit of financial statements and other assurance services 458 449

 (b) Non-audit services

  Neither the Office of the Auditor General nor their agent(s) provided any non‐audit services during the year   
  ended 30 June 2021 (30 June 2020: nil). 

  Non‐audit services represent engagements in addition to the statutory and regulatory audit duties of the   
  external auditor.       

28. Contingencies

 Western Power’s policy is to disclose details of contingencies where the probability of future receipts and/or 
 payments is not considered remote, as well as details of contingencies, which although considered remote, the 
 directors consider should be disclosed.      

 (a) Contingent assets 
  Western Power did not have any contingent assets at 30 June 2021.

 (b) Contingent liabilities

  (i) Contaminated sites 
   Western Power has 150 known or suspected contaminated sites that have been reported to the 
   Department of Water and Environmental Regulation (DWER) under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003 (WA), 
   although 19 of these sites have third party or shared responsibilities with adjacent landowners. 

   Until Western  Power conducts an investigation to determine the presence and scope of contamination,   
   assesses the risk and agrees with the DWER the need and criteria for remediation, Western Power is   
   unable to accurately quantify its clean‐up liabilities for all known or suspected contaminated sites. 

   Western Power continues to monitor the sites and progressively undertakes site investigations and   
   remediation on a risk‐based approach. This approach is consistent with the DWER guidelines.

  (ii) Other 
   Western Power is currently party to, or is potentially affected by a number of legal claims. Until proceedings  
   relating to these claims are finalised, uncertainty exists regarding the impact, if any, on the operations of   
   Western Power.

   In the opinion of the directors, provisions or further disclosures are not required in respect of these   
   contingencies, as it is not probable a future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required, or the amount  
   is not capable of reliable measurement.         
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29. Commitments

 (a) Capital commitments

  Future capital commitments contracted for as at the reporting dates presented, but for which no amounts have   
  been provided for in the financial statements are below. They include major transmission and distribution capital  
  expenditure largely associated with asset replacements, customer‐funded work and undergrounding, plus   
  properties and information technology initiatives.        

2020/21 
$M

2019/20 
$M

Payable within one year 170 171
Payable later than one year but not later than five years 45 53

215 224

 (b) Other expenditure commitments   

  As at the reporting dates presented, the State Government requires Western Power to make, by notice   
  published in the gazette, the below future annual payments into the tariff equalisation fund for the benefit of the  
  Regional Power Corporation. The 2020/21 reported commitments were gazetted on 8 June 2021.  

2020/21 
$M

2019/20 
$M

Payable within one year 187 185
Payable later than one year but not later than five years 569 524

756 709

  For the year ended 30 June 2021, Western Power made payments of $185 million into the tariff equalisation   
  fund (30 June 2020: $171 million). This expense has been recognised in ‘other expenses’ in profit or loss  
  (refer to note 5(c)(i)).

30. Events occurring after the reporting date

 Other than the below, there are no matters or circumstances that have arisen since 30 June 2021 and the date  
 of this report that are likely, in the opinion of the directors, to significantly affect the operations of Western Power,   
 the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of Western Power in subsequent reporting years. 

 2014 Parkerville bushfire – Supreme Court (Court of Appeal) judgement on civil case 

 On Friday, 2 July 2021, the Western Australian Supreme Court (Court of Appeal) overturned the Supreme Court’s   
 2019 decision that found Western Power had no liability in relation to the 2014 Parkerville bushfire, and apportioned  
 liability between Western Power, Western Power’s contractor, and the landowner. 

 The 2014 Parkerville bushfire started when a fallen private power pole ignited ground vegetation, damaging or   
 destroying a number of properties in the Parkerville and Stoneville areas. 

 Any claim in relation to this matter will be covered by Western Power’s insurers.
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In the directors’ opinion:

(a) The financial statements and notes comply with Australian accounting standards, other authoritative    
 pronouncements and Schedule 4 of the Electricity Corporations Act 2005 (WA)  

(b) The financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial position of Western Power as at  
 30 June 2021 and of its performance for the reporting year ended on that date  

(c) There are reasonable grounds to believe that Western Power will be able to pay its debts as and when they   
 become due and payable  

The directors’ have been given the declaration by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer for the 
reporting year ended 30 June 2021. This is pursuant to section 295(4)(e) of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) despite  
not mandatory for Western Power.  

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 24 August 2021.

G Martin 
Deputy Board Chair

C Beckett AO 
Board Chair

26 August 2021
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7th Floor Albert Facey House 469 Wellington Street Perth    MAIL TO: Perth BC PO Box 8489 Perth WA 6849    TEL: 08 6557 7500   

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S OPINION
2021

Electricity Networks Corporation (Trading as Western Power)

To the Parliament of Western Australia

Opinion
I have audited the financial report of Electricity Networks Corporation (Trading as Western 
Power) (the Corporation), which comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 
2021, and the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration. 

In my opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Corporation is prepared in accordance 
with Schedule 4 of the Electricity Corporation Act 2005 including:

a. giving a true and fair view of the Corporation’s financial position as at 30 June 2021 and of 
its performance for the year then ended; and

b. complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial 
Report section of my report. I am independent of the Corporation in accordance with the Auditor 
General Act 2006 and the relevant ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional & Ethical 
Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including 
independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report. I have 
also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. I believe that the audit 
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Other Information   
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information in the Corporation’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2021, but does not 
include the financial report and my auditor’s report thereon.

My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly, I do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial report
The directors of the Corporation are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that 
gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Schedule 4 of 
the Electricity Corporation Act 2005 and for such internal control as the directors determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Corporation’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Western Australian Government has 
made policy or funding decisions affecting the continued existence of the Corporation.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the 
override of internal control.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the 
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at 
https://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf. This description forms part of my 
auditor’s report.

Matters relating to the electronic publication of the audited financial report
This auditor’s report relates to the financial report of Electricity Networks Corporation (Trading as 
Western Power) for the year ended 30 June 2021 included on the Corporation’s website. The 
Corporation’s management is responsible for the integrity of the Corporation’s website. This audit 
does not provide assurance on the integrity of the Corporation’s website. The auditor’s report 
refers only to the financial report described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other 
information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial report. If users of the financial 
report are concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on the website, they are 
advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial report to confirm the information 
contained in this website version of the financial report.

Caroline Spencer 
Auditor General for Western Australia 
Perth, Western Australia
2 September 2021
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